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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
however arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
Shen You Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
T BBy

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am
delighted to present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue
decreased to approximately HK$45.0 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 23.4%, as compared to
revenue of approximately HK$58.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Group's net loss decreased
to approximately HK$15.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately HK$19.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing a decrease of
approximately 18.9%. Such decrease in net loss was mainly
due to the decrease in impairment losses on financial assets
of approximately HK$3.0 million and decrease in the finance
cost of approximately HK$0.9 million during the year ended
31 December 2020 as compared to that for the year ended 31
December 2019.

PROSPECTS

For the existing principal business of manufacturing and
selling of sewing threads, the Group has experienced
some difficulties owing to the outbreak of the coronavirus
("COVID-19") pandemic and uncertainties due to the ongoing
trade conflict between the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and the United States of America (“U.S8.”) as well
as the gradual slowdown of the PRC economy. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's overseas sales
decreased by approximately 32.2% and its sales to the PRC
decreased by approximately 20.9% as compared with the
year ended 31 December 2019. In coming year, although
the tension of COVID-19 seemed to be abating, we expect
that the trade conflict between the PRC and the US and the
COVID-19 will still continue impacting our business. The Group
will continue to pay close attention to the trade conflict and
COVID-19 and to evaluate its impact on the financial position,
cashflows and operating result of this business line.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

+ EHE(8)

On the other hand, the Group has completed an acquisition
for the new subsidiaries which engaged in the provision of
interior design, fitting out and decoration services on February
2021. The Group consider that there is a growing popularity
of interior design, fitting-out and decoration in commercial,
residential and public sectors in Hong Kong and the Greater
Bay Area to seek individuality and style. Hence, the Group
expected the new line of business can diversify its existing
business portfolio and to increase source of income.

The Group would continue to review the existing businesses
of the Group from time to time with a view to improving the
business operation and financial position of the Group. The
Group is in the course of feasibility study to invest in new
business related to quality thoroughbred, acquire the horse
racing and breeding operations. The Board considers that
it is beneficial for the Group to seek suitable investment
opportunities with a view to increasing the value of the Group
and maximising returns to the Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| wish to take this opportunity to extend my sincere thanks to
our shareholders, business partners, customers and suppliers
for their continuous support. | would also like to express
my deep gratitude to my fellow Directors and the Group's
management team and staff for their efforts and dedication to
the Group during the past year.

Shen You Holdings Limited
Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
Chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR E & am M oA

INTRODUCTION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
selling of sewing threads and broad categories of garment
accessories. It currently manufactures polyester sewing
threads, which are mainly used for garments. The major
product of the Group is 100% spun polyester sewing threads.
Other types of sewing threads are also offered, including
textured polyester series, elastic filament sewing threads, weft
yarn and nylon threads The Group's customers are located in
the PRC, Hong Kong as well as overseas countries, including
United Arab Emirates ("UAE"), Mauritius, Switzerland and the
United Kingdom. While the Group’s customers in the PRC and
Hong Kong are mainly garment manufacturers, its overseas
customers are mainly wholesalers. The production facilities of
the Group, where the sewing threads manufacturing process is
conducted, are located in Liwan, Guangzhou (the “Guangzhou
Production Facilities”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’'s revenue
decreased by approximately 23.4% as compared with that for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The gross profit margin
increased to approximately 23.2% for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately 19.3% for the preceding
year. The increase was mainly attributable to the decrease in
the charge rate of the processing fees during the year.

While the Group’s business has experienced some difficulties
as a result of the trade conflict between the PRC and the U.S.
and the COVID-19, the Board and the senior management
of the Company are confident of the business line of
sewing threads of the Group's steady performance given
its competitive strengths, which include: (i) the long-term
business relationships with its customers and suppliers; (ii)
adoption of the stringent quality control mechanisms in the
course of sewing threads production; (iii) the strategic location
of the Guangzhou Production Facilities for its business
development; and (iv) an experienced management team with
extensive industry experience. Further details of the future
prospects of the Group are set out in the section headed
"Future Plans and Prospects” in this annual report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB am M oA ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7 E1EE
Revenue Uk 2=

The Group's products are sold in the PRC, Hong Kong as well ARNEEMERENTE FEEREINMEE -

as overseas. The following table sets out a breakdown of the TXRHIAEERHEE T -_TFER

=

=

Group's revenue attributable to domestic and overseas sales —NF+-_A=Z+—HIMEFEAREE
of the Group’s sewing threads for the two years ended 31  #& 4] 4% B0 0 & 5 & 28 FE(H W 25 8F 40 ¢

December 2020 and 2019:

Year ended 31 December
BE+T-RB=1t-HLEE

2020
—E-SHE

—=—=

% of total

HK$'000 revenue
FTET HAKRE%

PRC H 26,081
Overseas Mote/ N 15,081
Hong Kong BB 3,822

44,984

2019

ZE-NF
% of total
HK$'000 revenue
FTHET HBEKE
32,968 56.1
22,233 379
3,545 6.0
58,746 100.0

Rate of

change
CET

%

(20.9)
(32.2)
78

(23.4)

Note: For the two years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group Mit - BHE-_T_ZTFR_ZT-—AF+-_A=+—8
IFREFE AEEBEREREZEBK -
BEETRN)MEYN  EFE2XH HLRE

exported its products to countries including but not limited to UAE,
Mauritius, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE sl am M T (48)

The following table sets out the breakdown of the revenue by
product that the Group offers for sale for the two years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019:

2020
==

HK$'000

TREIINBE_ZT_TFER_ZT-NF

tT-A=1+— Eiﬁﬂ¢7&$glﬁﬁ

HEENERME SN KRAMA:
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-ALFE Rate of
2019 change
—hE D)
% of total % of total
revenue HK$'000 revenue %
1 48 1 2% % FTET BHEKRE%

TERT

100% spun polyester  100% )& 4 42
sewing threads

Other threads Mete)

38,506

H 4% 1) 1 (i) 6,478

44,984

Note: Other threads comprise textured polyester series, elastic filament

sewing threads, weft yarn and nylon threads.

The Group’'s revenue decreased to approximately HK$45.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately HK$58.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing a decrease of approximately
23.4%. Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in
sales to the PRC market and overseas market, of 20.9% and
32.2% due to outbreak of Covid-19. The oversea sales of the
Group have been stopped nearly two months during the first
half of 2020 and the sales order of the Group also reduce
due to the dampened economic activities. The sales of the
Group for the first three quarter of 2020 have been dropped
approximately HK$13 million compared with the same period
of last year and it showed a recovery since the last quarter of
2020. The sales to PRC market and oversea market accounted
for approximately 58.0% and 33.5% respectively of the total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of direct material
costs, processing fees and direct labour costs. The cost of
sales decreased to approximately HK$34.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately HK$47.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a
decrease of approximately 27.2%. The Group’s cost of sales
decreased for the year ended 31 December 2020 mainly as a
result of the aforementioned decrease in revenue.

52,053 88.6 (26.0)

6,693 11.4 (3.2)

58,746 100.0 (23.4)
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PR H) B27.2% c BHE_ZE T F+= A
Z+—HLFE AEEMHEER A TR
TEBRR ER WS TBRATE -

HEZERARAT /2020F K

9



10

I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIEE s wm M T (48)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’'s gross profit margin increased to approximately
23.2% from 19.3% for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which was a result of the decrease in the charge rate of
processing fees.

The Group's gross profit decreased to approximately
HK$10.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
from approximately HK$11.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing a decrease of approximately
8.0%. The decrease was mainly a result of the aforementioned
decrease in revenue.

Other losses and expenses, net

The Group recorded other losses, net of approximately HK$4.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared
with other losses, net of approximately HK$2.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 64.1%. Such increase was mainly attributable to
the increase in the exchange loss during the year.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of staff costs
and transportation expenses. Selling expenses decreased to
approximately HK$5.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 from approximately HK$7.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. Such decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in transportation expenses and labour cost as a
result of the aforementioned decrease in revenue.

Administrative expenses

Administrative losses primarily consist of staff costs,
Directors’ remuneration and legal and professional fees.
Administrative expenses increased to approximately
HK$15.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
from approximately HK$13.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019, representing an increase of approximately
14.1%. Such increase was mainly attributable to the increase
in legal and professional fees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB Mo AT ()

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs decreased to approximately
HK$0.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 from
approximately HK$1.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2019, representing a decrease of approximately 72.2%. Such
decrease was mainly due to all the banking facilities have been
cancelling by the bank with effect from April 2020. Therefore,
the Group had fully settled all the bank borrowing during the
year.

Loss before income tax

As a result of the aforesaid, the Group recorded a loss
before income tax of approximately HK$15.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately HK$16.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a
decrease of approximately 6.6%.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded income tax expense of approximately
HK$2.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 while
no income tax expense was recorded for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Total comprehensive expenses attributable to the
owners of the parent

The total comprehensive expenses attributable to the owners
of the parent decreased to approximately HK$11.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately
HK$20.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019,
representing a decrease of approximately 44.2%. Such
decrease was mainly due to the combined effect of the
decrease in the Group's loss for the year ended 31 December
2020 due to the reasons mentioned above and the increase in
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Basic and diluted loss per share

The Company's basic and diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately HK6.22 cents
(2019: HK8.66 cents (restated)), representing a decrease of
approximately 28.2%, which was mainly due to the decrease
in loss attributable to the owners of the parent.

Final dividend

The board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
operations were primarily financed through its operating and
financing activities. The Directors believe that in the long
term, the Group's operations will continue to be funded by
a combination of cash generated from the Group's operating
activities and financing activities.

The Group’'s cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$11.9 million and approximately HK$34.5
million as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively. The
functional currency of the Group is the Hong Kong dollar.
As at 31 December 2020, 96.9% of the Group's cash and
bank balances were denominated in the Group's functional
currency (31 December 2019: 98.7%) and the remaining 3.1%
(31 December 2019: 1.3%) in other currencies, mainly the
Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had net
current assets of approximately HK$35.5 million and
approximately HK$28.0 million, respectively, which included
trade receivables, deposit and other receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s current ratio
increased from approximately 1.8 as at 31 December 2019 to
approximately 3.8 as at 31 December 2020 due to the Rights
Issue (as defined below) and the settlement of the bank
borrowings.

inventories
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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GEARING RATIO

The Group's gearing ratio is calculated based on net debt
(including interest-bearing bank borrowings, trade payables,
other payables and accruals, and lease liabilities, less cash
and cash equivalents) divided by the total equity plus net
debt at the respective reporting date. The gearing ratio
is approximately 6.1% and approximately 3.1% as at 31
December 2020 and 2019, respectively. The Group believes
that the cash at banks provide adequate liquidity to satisfy the
Group's funding requirements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2019: nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 12 June 2020, the Company completed a rights issue
and issued 400,000,000 new shares with par value HK$0.01
each at a subscription price of HK$0.043 per rights share on
the basis of one rights share for every two existing shares
held (the “Rights Issue”), and the net proceeds of the
Rights Issue, after deducting the related expenses, were
approximately HK$14.6 million, which were mainly used for
the partial payments of the Group’s general and administrative
expenses, professional fees and acquisition of raw materials.
Detailed terms of the Rights Issue and its results were set out
in the Company's prospectus dated 20 May 2020 (the “Rights
Issue Prospectus”) and the announcement dated 11 June
2020, respectively.

In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 21
August 2020, it was approved that a share consolidation on
the basis that every five (5) issued and unissued Shares of
HK$0.01 each were consolidated into one (1) Share of HK$0.05
each on 25 August 2020 (“Share Consolidation”). Details of
the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 5 August 2020 and the announcement dated 21 August
2020.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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As at 31 December 2020, the Company's issued share capital
amounted to HK$12.0 million, divided by 240,000,000 shares
of HK$0.05 each.

Details of changes in the Company's share capital for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 26 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements of this report.

As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds of the Rights Issue
had been utilised as follows:

Actual net
proceeds
allocated

EBEIE

FIEREFHE
HK$ million
BERTR
General and administrative —BRETHAX
expenses
Professional fees BEZEH
Acquisition of raw materials RERMH

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any
significant investments (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
have any acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
18 August 2020, 7 September 2020, 28 September 2020,
20 October 2020, 17 November 2020, 17 December 2020,
12 January 2021, 2 February 2021 and the circular of the
Company dated 12 January 2021, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Diamond Motto Limited. The
Company has completed the acquisition on 9 February 2021
and disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9
February 2021.

Save as these disclosed above and in the Company's
prospectus dated 30 November 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the
Group currently has no other plans for material investments
and capital assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have material
contingent liabilities (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its
treasury policies. The Group strives to reduce exposure to
credit risk by performing ongoing credit evaluation of the
financial conditions of its clients and credit review of the
Group’s loan portfolio. To manage liquidity risk, the Board
closely monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that
the liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities and
commitments can meet its funding requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk when it enters
into transactions which are not denominated in the Group's
functional currency. Such exposure mainly relates to the
distribution and sale of the Group’s products and purchases of
raw materials in the PRC. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. Yet, the Group’s management
monitors foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise. The sensitivity analysis of the Group’'s exposure
to foreign exchange risk and other financial risks are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the following assets were
pledged to banks to secure certain banking facilities granted to
the Group:

SN FERL B

AEBERILANAEEDEE B E
MXZHAZIINERR -GHARRTEHR
REBOHERHEEAEENERLBER
MEERHE - AEEBAY \INEEHBE -
KM AREEEESTUERINERR
TREFTEFHEEHPERINERR -
7R 5 SMNE R B e E i £ &R B BY 8RR
ENHHERAFERESFEMHRRME
29 °

BEEM
RZFBZFER_FT-NF+ZA=1T—8H"
NTEECEMTRIT WERASERE
BEETRITAE

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2020 2019
—E_EfF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FET
Financial asset at FVTPL BARBEFAEZNEREE 4,742
Trade receivables JEUR R 5 FIE 3,622
8,364
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of
1567 employees (as at 31 December 2019: 172), of whom
147 were located in the PRC and 10 were located in Hong
Kong. The Group’s staff costs mainly comprised wages
and salaries, social insurance, housing provident fund and
severance payments. For the two years ended 31 December
2020, the Group’s total staff costs (excluding Directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$17.3 million and
HK$14.5 million, respectively. The Group offers remuneration
packages comprising basic salaries, discretionary bonuses
and allowances to its management and office staff. For the
workers at the Guangzhou Production Facilities, the Group
offers them salaries above the minimum wage, promotion
opportunities and budgets for social events.

The remuneration committee of the Company is responsible
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages
of the Directors and senior management members with
reference to the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities, employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration. Any discretionary bonus
and other merit payments are linked to the profit performance
of the Group and the individual performance of the Directors
and senior management members. The Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 24
November 2017, under which the Company may grant options
to, among others, any employees (full-time or part-time) or
Directors with a view to rewarding them for their contributions
to the Group, giving incentive to them for optimising their
performance and efficiency and attracting as well as retaining
those whose future contributions are important to the
long-term growth and profitability of the Group. Since the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this annual report, no share options have been granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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MAJOR AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group had entered
into transactions which constituted major transaction and
connected transactions under Chapters 19 and 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules with Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, a Director,
details of which please refer to the announcement titled
“Major and Connected Transactions — Provision of Financial
Assistance to Connected Person” issued by the Company
dated 31 March 2020, 21 April 2020, 8 May 2020, 5 June
2020, 3 July 2020, 14 August 2020, 18 September 2020, 16
October 2020, 20 November 2020, 17 December 2020, 28
January 2021, the circular dated 16 February 2021 and note 32
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Save for the matter in relation to the above paragraph of
“Major and Connected Transactions” and the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, having made all
reasonable enquiries, the Group has in all material respects
complied with all relevant laws, rules and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group and its operations in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

In order to better integrate the concept of social responsibility
into the Group’s strategy and decision-making and to further
guide the Group to develop a socially responsible practice,
the Group has established an environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") report preparation team. While preparing
the report, the Group strives to incorporate the notion of
sustainable development into its daily operations.

Meanwhile, the Group has established a systematic
stakeholder communication channel with the aim to facilitate
positive interactions with the Group's stakeholders, actively
respond to relevant litigation issues and promote quality,
effective and sustainable growth. Throughout the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group has maintained its business
integrity and dedication to environmental protection, while
continuously striving to improve quality management and
employee care.
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For further information in relation to the Group's ESG
practices, please refer to the Group's separate ESG report,
which is expected to be published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company within three months after
the publication of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Employees are considered to be one of the most important
factors that contribute to the productivity of the Group.
Employees of the Group are mainly provided with on-the-job
training as well as remuneration packages and allowances.

The Group also communicates closely with its customers to
obtain valuable feedback and provides them with information
about the Group’s products and trends in the sewing threads
market. The Group has maintained business relationships
with its five largest customers for a period ranging from
approximately five to twenty years, respectively. Likewise,
the Group has also established stable relationships with its
suppliers. As such, the Directors believe that the Group has
developed a trustworthy and reliable reputation as well as a
strong partnership with its customers and suppliers.

USE OF PROCEEDS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the net proceeds from
the Share Offer were approximately HK$40.7 million, after
deducting commission and expenses borne by the Company in
connection with the Share Offer (the "Net Proceeds”). As at
31 December 2020, the unutilised Net Proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$8.7 million.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Net Proceeds had been applied RZZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—8 FFEXRE
and utilised as follows: FECEALBAMOT:

Expected timeline
for utilising the
Net Proceeds unutilised amount
available Utilised Unutilised iNote 1)
AEAH BRAKBAREN
FERERE EHA X8R BEESEXR
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEBTL BEATL BEBTT
Upgrading the Group's FARAEEITXH100% 20.3 3.1 172 on or before
machinery for the production i # 4 4 FE 28 31 December 2021
of 100% spun polyester RZBE—_—F
sewing threads for industrial +ZA=+—H
use R 2
Upgrading the Group's FHRAEBERH100% 77 2.2 5.5 on or before
machinery for the production i # 5 4 FE 4 28 31 December 2021
of 100% spun polyester RZBE_—F
sewing threads for domestic +ZA=+—H
use R A
Acquiring new cone winding BENBTHRYK 4.1 0.5 3.6 on or before
machines 31 December 2021
RZBE_—F
+ZA=+—H
FH%ZH
Acquiring new machinery for B EHERE R L EH S 3.7 1.3 2.4 on or before
the production of nylon 31 December 2021
threads R-E-—F
+-A=1+-H
EHN A
Setting up a sales office in ERTARUEERE 1.2 1.2 -
Zhejiang province iz
Working capital and other $EIE’\]%L§%& 3.7 3.7 =
general corporate purposes Hio—me¥Rs

of the Group

) . 40.7 12.0 28.7

Repayment of bank BRRITRE W
facilities (Note 2 - 20.0 —
40.7 32.0 8.7

Note 1. The expected timetable for fully utilising the unutilised Net Proceeds  ffit7: BHEAASAMS R B FEBHBM X
is determined based on the Group’s best estimate of future market BEASBEHRART AN K EGBTRBER
conditions, and is subject to change depending on current market AMARKRRMSERMEGETE -
conditions and future market developments.

Note 2: The Group made use of approximately HK$20 million out of the /22 EAHHEAESRBFEFT AEFHHY

unutilised Net Proceeds for the repayment of the banking facilities. 20,000,000/ T AEE B ITRE - Ll &8
Details of the aforesaid repayment are set out in the Company's NHABIARARBBRA T _ZF=A
announcement dated 31 March 2020. =F+—HHQAE -

All the banking facilities have been cancelled by the bank with effect SHRITEE-Z-_ZFWA-+NLBRECEMARITH
from 29 April 2020. The Group is making its best efforts to obtain & $EI§JE§7‘JEM§I¥HE’]§E?‘T%E§DM%%E D 4
new banking facilities for its operation and to continue with the iEiﬂﬂPﬁfE' FEFHENBTE RS

implementation of the planned use of the Net Proceeds.
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Below is an analysis comparing the future plans and use of
proceeds contained in the Prospectus from the Listing Date
up to 31 December 2020:

Business strategy Implementation plan

EHRE Bt &

BErtTHHEEE_ZET_ZTHF+_-H
=t+—B BREEMIBEKRRFERMAE

REREOL BT T:

Actual progress as at

31 December 2020
R-ZB=-FF+=-A=1+—-HK
BEREE

— Purchase eight waxing and
winding machines for the
production of 100% spun
polyester sewing threads for
industrial use

Upgrading the Group’s machinery
for the production of 100% spun
polyester sewing threads for
industrial use

AHEANEBTEFAI00% Kt —RBNEGLEMEO#® - AR
B 3S FEIEB100% Kk 1%

— Purchase two machines for the
production of 100% spun
polyester sewing threads for
domestic use

Upgrading the Group's machinery
for the production of 100% spun
polyester sewing threads for
domestic use

AZAEBRBI00% KigiFEE —REMAKS  ARNEERHA
1 25 100% & 4 43

— Purchase five machines for the
production of nylon threads

Acquiring new machinery for the
production of nylon threads

—RKBLAa#S BREERRE
R

BEMEEREEMS

— Lease suitable premises for the
Group's sales office

— Renovate the sales office

— Purchase office equipment

— HAEESH  BIEREHEMH
EWER

— RKEHEMEFR

— RRERNERE

Setting up a sales office in
Zhejiang province

EMIARIEEREFR

The Group has purchased and
is operating two waxing and
winding machines for the
production of 100% spun
polyester sewing threads for
industrial use.

AEBEHRET FEAMAE L#E
MWK BREETER
100% M4 48 -

The Group has purchased and
is operating one machine for
the production of 100% spun
polyester sewing threads for
domestic use.
AEBECKBIWEFR —&#:s
RAREERB100% Kin iR o

The Group has purchased and is
operating three machines for
the production of nylon threads.

AEBEHBYWEFHA=-Aa#:S -

AREERRER -

The Group has set up a sales office
in Zhejiang Province, which is
currently in full operation.

REBMERH IERIHENS
B BRC2mERAEFE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB am M oA ()

Business strategy Implementation plan

E Bt E

Actual progress as at

31 December 2020
R=-B-ZH+=ZA=+—-HHW
BEREE

Acquiring new cone winding
machines

balance for two cone
winding machines

BENBETREYK

— Order two cone winding
machines to facilitate the
production lines for 100%
spun polyester sewing
threads and paying the

—FIEMAE THEYOBIARE
100% Mk im 4R £ E AR BT R

The Group has purchased and is
operating one cone winding
machine.

ARBERBYEER—AHT
B -

XNMaRETFHYENSRE

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The future plans and use of proceeds schedule disclosed
in the Prospectus were formulated based on the best
estimation of the market conditions after the Listing. The
discrepancy between the planned use of the Net Proceeds
and the actual use mainly arose as a result of the actual
market conditions affecting the Group after the Listing. The
continuing trade conflict between the U.S. and the PRC, the
PRC’s gradual economic slowdown and the recent outbreak
of COVID-19 have presented the Group with uncertainties
and multiple challenges, rendering the need for the Group to
be prudent in implementing its future plans as set out in the
Prospectus. The Directors believed that a strict adherence to
the implementation plan will increase the production capacity
of the Group, while the additional machinery may lead to a
provision for impairment for such machinery to be made in the
future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BB Mo AT ()

Meeting the demands of its customers as to high quality
and differentiated products is one of the Group’'s priorities
in order to maintain long-term business relationships with
its customers. Further, the Directors believe that there are
considerable business opportunities in the sewing threads
industry in the long term. To satisfy its customers’ potential
needs and to capture the business opportunities in the sewing
threads industry, the Group will continue to implement the
expansion plans set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus in a prudent and
conservative manner in light of the market conditions at the
time.

The Directors will continue to carefully monitor and assess
the situation and, if the expansion plans no longer suit the
operation and the future development of the Group, the
Directors may evaluate and modify them so as to ensure that
the Group’s business strategies are in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

MEREFPHEMmERTAERNBRR
AEBEHEP-—HELAEE tMAFTFRE
REENEBHAE I EFHE #
MRTEREMSNERERTE - BmE
EPMBEERRLERDRITEOEHK
R E K A R BT O AR R AR ST YA
FHEBETHRERIRES S LAER
BRE]I-HAENERS -

E=EREBETAEERTIABEERL
MERASABESASENEE K
KER G AESARANHNMET AR
g UBERAKEEHERENSTAEARAR
BRHEEREND -
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEENEREFIS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (E B &), aged 61, was appointed
as a Director and the chairman of the Board on 18 August
2016 and re-designated as an executive Director on 23 June
2017. He is also the chief executive officer, the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Company, one of the Group's
controlling shareholders, as well as a director of each of the
Group's subsidiaries. Mr. Wong is primarily responsible for the
management and overall strategic planning and development
of the Group. Mr. Wong has over 30 years of experience in
accounting and assurances.

Mr. Wong obtained his higher diploma in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in November 1982. Mr. Wong was
admitted as a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and as an associate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in November
1992 and February 2008, respectively. From April 2019 to
May 2020, Mr. Wong is an independent non-executive director
of JBB Builders International Limited (stock code: 1903), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
From May 2019 to January 2020, Mr. Wong served as an
independent non-executive director of Yi Hua Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2213), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Wong did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEkEREEEBNEREFE

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch (PR ¥ 3 ), aged 54, was appointed
as the company secretary, compliance officer and an executive
Director of the Company on 18 August 2016, 23 June 2017
and 19 February 2020, respectively. Mr. Chan obtained his
bachelor’'s degree of art in accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong (formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong)
in November 1992 and was admitted as a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1997 and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in April 2001, respectively. From June 2006 to
December 2011, Mr. Chan served as an executive director
of the tax department of Ernst & Young, an international
accounting firm, where he was primarily responsible for
providing tax and business advisory services to both
international and domestic companies operating in the PRC.
Further, Mr. Chan served as a partner in the tax department
of the Guangzhou Branch of Grant Thornton, an international
accounting firm, from October 2012 to October 2015 where
he was primarily responsible for developing the tax practice in
Guangzhou. Mr. Chan has also been serving as an independent
director of Natural Health Trends Corp. (stock code: NHTC), an
international direct-selling and e-commerce company listed on
the NASDAQ Stock Market LLC, since December 2015, and is
responsible for supervising and providing independent advice
to the board of the company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
ESEkaReEBEBENREFE(E)

Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex (R %14), aged 43, obtained his
bachelor's degree in commerce specialising in economics
and finance from the University of Melbourne in Australia in
1999. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in financial
services sector, mainly in compliance and asset management.
From July 2014 to December 2020, Mr. Leung served as an
executive director of DT Capital Limited, whose shares are
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 356).
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Leung was a responsible
officer of an asset management company, namely JK Capital
Management Limited. Mr. Leung was a Chartered Financial
Analyst. He was licensed under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ") as a responsible officer to carry out Type 1 (dealing in
securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising on
corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated
activities.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Leung did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EEkaReEBEBENREFE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming (R ¥ 8]), aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director on 24 November
2017. Mr. Sung is also the chairman of the audit committee
and a member of each of the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of the Group. Mr. Sung has over
30 years of experience in accounting and assurances. Mr.
Sung graduated from La Trobe University in Australia in March
1984 with a bachelor's degree in economics. Mr. Sung was
admitted as a fellow of the Taxation Institute of Australia and
a member and fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in November 1987, December 1987
and February 1995, respectively. He was also admitted as
an associate of CPA Australia and Chartered Accountants
Australia and New Zealand in March 1986 and April 1989,
respectively. Mr. Sung has been the sole proprietor of Alfred
Sung & Co. since 1999 and he is primarily responsible for
overseeing audit and taxation works. Currently, Mr. Sung
serves as an executive director and chief financial officer of
Modern Living Investments Holdings Limited (stock code:
8426), a company listed on GEM.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Sung did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
ESEkaREEBEBENRRERE(E

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold (B # 81), aged 61, obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in business administration from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1986, a postgraduate diploma in
banking and finance from the City University of Hong Kong
(formerly known as City Polytechnic of Hong Kong) in 1990
and a master's degree in finance from City University of Hong
Kong in 1995. He is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, UK Chartered Management Institute,
Certified Practising Accountants, Australia, a member of
International Institute of Management and a Chartered
Financial Analyst charterholder. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of JBB Builders International Limited,
whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1903). Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in project finance and fund-raising activities for
construction projects in Hong Kong and Asia Pacific

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chan did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel (/@ & 18), aged 38, obtained
his bachelor of science degree in mathematics, economics
and finance from The University of Hong Kong in 2004. Mr.
Chow is a Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Chow has over 15
years of experience in managing investment funds. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Chow served at Dah Sing Bank from
October 2004 to July 2005 as a risk control assistant and he
served at JK Capital Management Limited from July 2005 to
December 2017 with his last position as an assistant portfolio
manager. From May 2018 to May 2019, Mr. Chow served as an
assistant portfolio manager at Step Capital Management (HK)
Limited. From May 2019 to August 2020, Mr. Chow served as
a portfolio manager at Reliance International Financial Planners
Limited. Since September 2020, Mr. Chow has served as a
portfolio manager at Perpetuum Wealth Management Limited
and since October 2020, he has served as a responsible
officer to carry out Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chow did not hold other
directorship in any other listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EEkEREEEBNEREFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. She Siu Ming (R4 B§), aged 62,
deputy general manager of Guangzhou Xinhua Thread Co.,
Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(“Guangzhou Xinhua"”). Mr. She is primarily responsible
for the management of business operations of Guangzhou
Xinhua as well as the internal control of the Group. Mr. She
joined the Group in March 2002. Mr. She graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1983 with a
bachelor's degree in business administration. Mr. She was
admitted as a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (formerly known as Hong Kong Society of
Accountants) in February 1997.

is the director and

Ms. Liu Jinghui (2% £), aged 47, is the financial controller
of Guangzhou Xinhua. Ms. Liu is primarily responsible for the
financial control of Guangzhou Xinhua. Ms. Liu joined the
Group in August 1994. Ms. Liu received her associate degree
in polymer chemical engineering from the South China
University of Technology (@3 T K2) in the PRC in July
1994. She also obtained qualifications as a registered tax
adviser from the Department of Personnel of the Guangdong
Province (E® & AZEE) in October 2004.

Mr. Lui Hak Kong ( & % Ml ), aged 56, is the production
manager of Guangzhou Xinhua. Mr. Lui is primarily responsible
for the production management as well as quality control of
Guangzhou Xinhua. Mr. Lui joined the Group in June 1996.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lui worked for Dik Sun Dyeing
Factory Ltd. as a person-in-charge for its laboratory and
quality control from June 1990 to April 1996. From June 1983
to March 1990, Mr. Lui worked as a merchandiser and site
leader of Fang Brothers Knitting Limited, which was a knitting
company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
ESEkaReEBEBENREFE(E)

Mr. Wong Pak Yip (B %), aged 54, is the sales manager of
Guangzhou Xinhua. Mr. Wong is primarily responsible for the
sales and marketing of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group
in July 1990. Mr. Wong completed a post-secondary five
course at Sha Tin Technical Institute (now known as Hong
Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Sha Tin)), majoring in
retail supervision, in July 1997. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wong worked for Unimix Limited, a garment manufacturing
and trading company, as a sales assistant from August 1988 to
May 1990. From August 1986 to July 1988, Mr. Wong worked
for Sun Hop Kee Garment Factory, a garment production
company, as a merchandiser.

None of the members of the senior management of the Group
has been a director of any listed or public companies, of which
the securities are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas in the three preceding years.
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Corporate Governance Report

TERERBMSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that cultivating and maintaining a culture
focused on good corporate governance is essential to
effect strong business growth and continue the efficient
management of the Company. The Directors are of the view
that strong corporate governance practices can safeguard the
interests of and ensure accountability to the Shareholders as a
whole.

The corporate governance code (the “CG Code”) as set out
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules has been adopted
by the Board. Nevertheless, the Directors are committed
to regularly reviewing its corporate governance practices to
ensure conformity with the standard set out in the CG Code,
as well as meeting the rising expectation of the Shareholders
and other stakeholders of the Company.

Except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code, details of which are set out in the section headed
“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” in this corporate
governance report, the Board is of the view that the Company
has complied with the code provisions for the year ended 31
December 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by the Directors equivalent to the
required standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors have all confirmed,
having been made specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard of dealings and the
required standard concerning securities transactions by the
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TERER®RSE (E)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEExg

Composition of the Board EEgrAER

The Board currently comprises: EEeERNeRE:

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (appointed as a Director on 18 August 2016 and re-designated

(Chairman and chief executive officer) as an executive Director on 23 June 2017)

BRRBEE(FEFTHAEE) (R=ZF-—ANENASTNAEZERBEFRR
ZE—tFENAZF ZHBERBHTEE)

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch (appointed as a Director on 19 February 2020)

PR 1B 3R 5t A4 (RZB-ZFEF_HFTNABEZLREE)

Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex (appointed as a Director on 4 June 2020)

REWMESE (R-ZFE_FEFNANAEZFEREE)

Non-executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. Gao Biao (retired as a Director on 26 June 2020)

=Yk E (R-ZFZFEFNHAAF N NARFEFZEEFRF)

Independent non-executive Directors

BIYFHTES

Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John (resigned as a Director on 1 December 2020)

HRYEE (RZEFZFF A HFFEFRF)

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming (appointed as a Director on 24 November 2017)

RNIERRSE 4 (R-F—+F+— A=+ HAEZTEEZFE)

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold (appointed as a Director on 4 June 2020)

BR E B 55 4 (R-ZEFEZFEFNANAEZFRESE)

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel (appointed as a Director on 4 June 2020)

B & B 5 & (RZEFZFEFNANAEZFREE)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the
section headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

Except as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”, there has been
no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

tERERRE(E)

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has provided
a written confirmation of his independence and the Company
regards them as independent pursuant to rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board will hold regular board meetings at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. Such meetings are
expected to involve active participation, either in person or
through electronic means of communication, of a majority of
the Directors entitled to be present.

Below is the attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2020:

ﬁ%%'ﬁ$ﬁT@E%thﬁW%
509K ER BB -

EXZeREFOREINAEHESS
%i WEBFEE-—R -BAHBEREEREZX

EEREERIKNEBETBRATRA
%Eﬁiﬁffﬁ%ﬂ%°

UTRBEREENHE_ZT_TF+_A
ST -HLEFERETHNEZTESENERE
A0 8%

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HERE

Name of Directors BEEHR BITEERY
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert =R E LA 15/15
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch PR 2 3R ST A 15/15
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex REWEE 10/10
Mr. Gao Biao = e 7/7
Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John 15 5% B B8 6/14
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming NIBRA S E 15/15
Mr. Zhang Guofu ERELE 7/7
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR i B % 4 9/9
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel A& E &£ 9/9
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Below is the attendance record of each Director at the general U TNASELZEENHE-_E-_ZTHF+-A
meeting of the Company during the year ended 31 December =+ —HIFFERTHN ALK EBF K
2020: g R E
Attendance/
number of
meetings held
HERE
Name of Directors EENF BITEREARH
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert ERELEE 0/2
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch PR B 2R ST A 0/2
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex REWREE 2/2
Mr. Gao Biao S i 01
Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John 15 5% 8 & 0/2
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming RIBBH L A& 1/2
Mr. Zhang Guofu EEELE 0/1
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR 3 B % 1/2
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel ARExE 1/2
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD BEEEgmET

The Board is primarily responsible for the overall management
and strategic planning and development of the Group, which
may involve convening general meetings and reporting the
Board's work at a shareholders’ meeting, determining business
and investment plans, preparing annual financial budgets and
final reports and formulating proposals for profit distributions.
Day-to-day management is alternatively delegated to the
executive Directors and senior management. The functions
delegated to senior management are regularly reviewed by the
Board to ensure that they are appropriately aligned with the
Group's needs.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had
three independent non-executive Directors and was at all
times in compliance with the requirements of the GEM Listing
Rules, which specifies that the independent non-executive
Directors must represent at least one third of the Board
members with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance policies to
cover the Directors’ risk exposure/liabilities with respect to
any legal actions against the Directors arising from corporate
activities of the Company. Such insurance coverage was
reviewed by the Board and shall continue to be reviewed
annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no committee for
corporate governance was established and the Board is thus
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
outlined in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Directors may hold Board meetings when necessary and
include any relevant matters for discussion in the agenda as
they see fit. A minimum of 14 days’ notice of such Board
meetings is given to all Directors. A draft agenda for each
Board meeting typically accompanies the notice to give the
Directors an opportunity to raise any other relevant issues for
discussion in the meeting. Board papers and related materials
to the meeting are circulated to each Director before each
meeting for their perusal to ensure that they can make an
informed decision to discharge their duty as a Director.

Draft minutes are also circulated to the Directors for their
comment and review after each Board meeting is held, and
the minutes of the Board and the Company’s committees are
kept by the company secretary of the Company. Each Board
member and Director has access to the advice and service
of the company secretary of the Company in order to comply
with relevant procedures and applicable rules and regulations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in management
structures and internal control procedures in order to achieve
effective accountability.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has
complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules, except for the deviation from the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

ARAEBEEERE  RREARA D
EEHTMARRH B EENEMERR
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EERBAE
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MmEEERBEE -
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RARBERSENEBEIREEANAS
ZRE - AHREFECRANZRESTH
HEDIARBH - ZEFTEEZZIENR
BEBBANTE URESFRERH-—EXNS
FREECAEMCERSREENRS - &
FEXHLRERERMHREEZN T H
TERESEAHFMN  BEREAELANIE
RENBITTEESHEA -

ERCBIRTERETUAHARSES
CERBTREREALEN EFEN
ARAEZEEERCHALRRARAWE
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RAIMEZRZZRXMFERE WETEH
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Mr. Wong, who is the chairman of the Board as well as the
chief executive officer of the Company, has been involved
in the daily operations and management of the Group since
2008. The Directors consider that vesting the roles of the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the
Company in Mr. Wong will ensure strong and consistent
leadership, facilitate the Group’s business strategies and boost
the effectiveness of the Company’s operation. The Board will
continue to review this arrangement and consider splitting
the roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer of the Company when such role splitting is beneficial
to the Group as a whole.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

The articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”)
state that at each annual general meeting (the "AGM"), one
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. A
Director retiring by rotation shall be eligible for re-election.

While each of the non-executive Directors and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company to act as a non-executive
Director or independent non-executive Director for a fixed
term of three years, the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors appointed are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election according to
the Articles. Independent non-executive Directors are required
to notify the Company as soon as practicable if there is any
change that may affect their independence and each of them
must provide a written confirmation of his independence every
year.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To ensure that the Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
relevant and informed, the Directors are to participate in
continuous professional development through which their
knowledge and skills can be refreshed and strengthened. As
part of the Directors’ continuous professional development
programme, newly appointed Directors are to receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction upon their
appointment as a Director while existing Directors receive
additional training when appropriate to ensure that they
are aware of and are able to comply with the obligations
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and any other statutory
requirements. The company secretary of the Company is
responsible for maintaining and updating records for the
Directors’ training sessions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all the Directors,
namely, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, Mr. Chan Yiu Tung,
Enoch, Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex, Mr. Gao Biao, Dr. Yeung
Ngai Man, John, Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming and Mr. Zhang
Guofu, Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold, and Mr. Chow Chin
Hang, Joel, comprising the Board during the year ended 31
December 2020, participated in a training session and each
Director was provided with relevant guidance materials with
respect to the laws applicable to Directors, the roles and
responsibilities of Directors and the Directors’ duty to disclose
their interest.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established the audit committee (the "Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) on 24 November 2017 in
order to oversee particular functions of the Company. These
committees of the Board have been established with written
terms of reference that clearly outline their authorities, powers
and duties. These terms of reference can be found on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established pursuant to rules 5.28
to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3
of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing financial information, monitoring the Company’s
financial reporting system and internal control procedures and
maintaining the relationship with the Company’s auditors.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming
(the chairman), Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr. Chow Chin
Hang, Joel. No member of the current Audit Committee is a
member of the previous independent auditor of the Company.
The Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report as well
as the consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The current terms of reference state that the Audit Committee
shall have at least four meetings annually. The Audit
Committee held a meeting on 26 March 2021 to (i) review
and approve the annual financial results in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020; (ii) discuss and consider issues
significant to financial reporting, controls on operations and
compliance, the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems; and (iii) review the appointment of
the auditor and its relevant scope of work.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee held five meetings, where the Audit Committee
reviewed and discussed, amongst other matters, (i) the
Group's consolidated results for the year ended 31 December
2019; (ii) the Group's consolidated results for the three months
ended 31 March 2020; (iii) the Group's consolidated results
for the six months ended 30 June 2020; (iv) the Group’s
consolidated results for the nine months ended 30 September
2020; (v) the financial reporting system and internal control
procedures of the Group; and (vi) appointment of auditor of the
Group.
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Below is the attendance record of each member of the Audit

UWTABEz-_2-_EF+-_A=+—8H1

Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020: FTEERZZESESKELFEERMNL
Attendance/
number of
meetings held
HERE
Name of Directors EEHR BITEREARH
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming (chairman) RIBEEE(EE) 5/5
Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John 15 3% G &8 2/4
Mr. Zhang Guofu EEELE 2/2
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold FeR 3 B o A 3/3
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BREXE 3/3
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEEE
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of three HMZESERBE=-"RBIUIFHNITES
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Tsun BN #EM LA (T E)  RERELE R ERE
Choi, Arnold (the chairman), Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming and Mr. & JE 4 o
Chow Chin Hang, Joel.
The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible %ﬁ@ﬂi,\aixﬁ = M EARFREBEER
for making regular recommendations to the Board on the EREENTNEREEEBUAREZ T
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all %lliaiﬁfr MBEENERXRBEREF - ME
Directors and senior management of the Company and on SE&{FHTHE:SE -
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing the remuneration policy.
The current terms of reference state that the remuneration 3R 7 B # & & 21| 83 - iﬁ%?%@i@%’ﬂ
Committee shall have at least one meeting annually. During B Z4d — k&% - %i_? —E2F+=A
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration =1+—HIFFE HFWHEZESDTRITHAX
Committee held two meetings, where they reviewed & G MKEZFD E’\/\Jzﬁﬁrﬂzli AIEEE
the remuneration packages for all Directors and senior FEERSREBEEBNGMMES  THEFS

management of the Company and made recommendations to
the Board.

TEHZE -
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Below is the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31 December

PEloA o

ATBBE_T—
FEFHEZESS

2020:

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HERE

Name of Directors EENSA BITERERHY

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BAEELE -/~

Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John (chairman) BRBEE(FE) 2/2

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming N IR RBA OE A 2/2

Mr. Zhang Guofu EHELE 2/2

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR i B % A -/~
Details regarding emoluments of the Directors for the year BHEEZEREHZ_ZT_ZF+_A=+—
ended 31 December 2020 are outlined in note 12 to the BIFFEERNMESHEBBARAREERE LR

consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the number of
senior management members whose remuneration fell within
the following band is as follows:

BTG R M FE12 ©

BE-T-TF+-A=+-—ALFE-
MeNTTHRENSREREREAKR
mT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band ¥ BN &5 = AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 T 3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, namely, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (the chairman)
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Sung Alfred Lee Ming, Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr.
Chow Chin Hang, Joel.

40
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The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for
regularly reviewing the structure of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change
to the structure of the Board. Following the establishment of
the Nomination Committee, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy in order to achieve diversity on the Board.
As such, Board members are selected based on a range of
diverse perspectives, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service.

The current terms of reference state that the Nomination
Committee shall have at least one meeting annually.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings, where they assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors and
recommended to the Board for the re-appointment of all the
retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

Below is the attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December
2020:

RAZBEGTIZATTHEHNESTSRE
THEMNEREFTERBEEINESS
FHEZR - NRIURBZERR  AQF
EXMEZEZHIEBR UEREEE
ZRL-BAit EFEXENREZEAT
RBHEEBEETRRMER - Fik X1t
FHEES FHELR R MIEER
BER)BE -

i

REBEHEY R REZESEFEAR
HeEd—rkegd #HE-_ZTZ_ZTF+_-A
=+ —HALFE REZEEERITWA
T MESERGLETEBIERTE
EMBUME THPARERFAS EEH
ZAFMBREIEERNESTREES: -

NTABE-_T-_TF+_-_A=+—81
FERZZESSKNEHL RSN

Attendance/

number of

meetings held

HERE

Name of Directors EEHR BITEREARH
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (chairman) &= B{& % 4 (£ &) 1/1
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming N IR BA SR A 1/1
Mr. Zhang Guofu EFEERE 11
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold PR i B % £ -/
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel BAEEXSE -/-
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial reporting

The Directors understand and recognise their responsibility to
(i) prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group;
and (ii) ensure that such financial statements are prepared to
give a true and accurate view of the state of affairs, results
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance as well
as any internal standards deemed appropriate and necessary
by the Directors in order to prepare the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. Further, the Directors also strive to offer
a fair and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s financial
position and prospects and ensure timely publication of the
financial statements of the Group. The Directors confirm that
as at 31 December 2020, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibility of the independent auditor of the Company
is to form its independent opinion based on its audit on those
consolidated financial statements prepared by the Board, and
to report its opinion to the Shareholders. Further details of
their reporting responsibility are set out in the independent
auditor’s report of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibility to ensure the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. As such, the Directors are committed to
reviewing such systems regularly. The Board, the Company’s
internal audit division and the Audit Committee conducted a
review of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems during the year ended 31 December 2020 and were
satisfied with their adequacy and effectiveness. Similarly, the
Board also examined the Group's internal control systems in
terms of financial, operational, compliance, procedural and risk
management functions and were generally satisfied with the
effectiveness of the current systems in place.
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The Directors understand that the enforcement of risk
management and internal control systems is essential to the
Group's ability to manage and minimise risks that may affect
the Group’s efficiency and effectiveness, or inhibit it from
achieving the business objectives.

In relation to the undertakings provided by the controlling
Shareholders in respect of the deed of non-competition,
the details of which are outlined in the Prospectus, the
independent non-executive Directors confirm that they
have reviewed the enforcement of such undertakings and
conclude that there are no outstanding issues regarding the
undertakings that need to be raised with the Shareholders and
the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the fees paid or
payable to the Company's independent external auditor, Asian
Alliance, for the audit services for the Group are approximately
as follows:

EEEME RYBTEREE RN RES
AMBASBEERERBIARTELRE
B ERAERMLARAEREKAERY
ENEBHER -

MREBRBERANHEFREGEE
RER)RENARMNS  BUIFNTE
$ﬁ@§% HO B &S A T

AR EEAZEBORBERREER
k ERREARETE -

o B8 B 2 A

BHE_ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—RALFE-
HIEETFAEENETZRE M2 BN
RRRBILINBZBEMEF A E AL W
™

Amount

&4

HK$'000

Type of service BR 7% 38 Bl FAET
Audit services EZR% 1,774

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) on 18
August 2016. The biographical details of Mr. Chan are set out
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report. Pursuant to rule
5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Chan has undertaken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In order to protect their own rights and interests, Shareholders
may propose separate resolutions in regard to substantial
issues at Shareholders’ meetings for consideration and voting.
According to the GEM Listing Rules, all resolutions presented
at Shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll, and after
the relevant Shareholders’ meeting, the results of such a
poll will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. Pursuant to the Articles, an AGM will be
held annually in the relevant territory where the Shares are
listed, or elsewhere as may be determined by the Board.
Any meeting other than an AGM is deemed an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM").

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETINGS

Extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date
of the deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of
the paid-up capital of the Company having the right of voting
at the general meetings. Such requisition must be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary of the Company
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

Shareholders must send their written resolutions, together
with their full name, contact details and identification, by post
to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong or by email for the attention of the company secretary of
the Company, details of which are set out below:

. Unit 1302, 13/F
New East Ocean Centre
9 Science Museum Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Principal place of
business of the
Company in Hong
Kong

Email address . info@shenyouholdings.com
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An extraordinary general meeting must be within two months
after the deposit of the requisition. If, within 21 days after
the deposit of the requisition, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.

RIGHT OF RAISING ENQUIRIES

For queries about shareholdings, share transfers, registrations
and dividend payments, Shareholders should contact the
Company’'s Hong Kong branch share registrar, whose details
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
this annual report.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS'’
MEETINGS

The Articles provide that Shareholders who wish to put
a resolution to a vote may convene an EGM by means of
requisition using the procedure set out above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company utilises various channels to communicate with
its shareholders and investors, including (i) the AGM or EGM,
which allows Shareholders to comment and exchange views
with the Board; (ii) the publication of interim, quarterly and
annual reports; (iii) notices, announcements and circulars; and
(iv) the Company's website at www.shenyouholdings.com.
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The Directors are pleased to present this report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 18 August 2016.
On 22 June 2017, the Group completed a group reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”), details of which are set out in the
section headed "History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” in the Prospectus. Through various reorganisation
procedures, the Company became the holding company of the
Group upon completion of the Reorganisation.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the
primary activities of its principal subsidiaries are the sale
and manufacture of sewing threads. Details of the Group's
principal activities are set out in note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2020, there were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of this
annual report. The Board does not recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group's performance for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the main issues impacting its
results and financial position are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
In addition, a discussion of the likely future development of the
Group's business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's profitability, financial position, results of
operations, business operations and prospects may be
affected by a variety of risks including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk
management system and policies are shown in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Further, the Group may also be exposed to other risks that may
be beyond its control. In particular, the Group may experience
material price fluctuations of fibre and yarn, both being raw
materials principally used in the manufacturing process of
sewing threads. The Group also faces business risks, including
(i) failure to secure a supply as the Group does not enter
into long-term supply contracts with its suppliers; (i) any
unexpected disruption in the Guangzhou Production Facilities;
and (iii) any labour shortage, increase in labour costs or other
factors affecting labour supply in the PRC, each of which
may materially and adversely affect the Group's operations,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the five years ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the
section headed “Five Year Financial Summary” of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements of the issued share capital of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights pursuant to
the Articles or the laws of the Cayman lIslands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’'s reserves available
for distribution to Shareholders, calculated according to
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
HK$47.3 million (2019: HK$32.0 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, sales to the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers represented
approximately 28.2% (2019: approximately 32.3%) and 42.1%
(2019: approximately 41.3%) of the Group's total revenue,
respectively. The Group's suppliers include suppliers of
raw materials and processing works. For the year ended
31 December 2020, supplies attributable to the Group's
largest supplier and five largest suppliers represented
approximately 32.6% (2019: approximately 27.2)% and 80.0%
(2019: approximately 77.3%) of the Group's total supplies,
respectively.
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To the Directors’ best knowledge, none of the Directors or
any of close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
or any Shareholder who or which own more than 5% of the
Company's issued share capital had any beneficial interest in

BEEMN EERAMNETHEACE
E R GEM LM B K #EH5% LA EARR A
EETRANBRERAEERECLAER
AARFPR/SEAEREATHEETIMNE

any of the five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers

of the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 andupto REZ-_ZT_ZF+_A=+—HIFE
the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
(Chairman and chief executive officer)

EBRERE(ZERTHAEE)

Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch
PR 18 3R % A
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex
REMAESE

Non-executive Directors
FHITES

Mr. Gao Biao

Sk

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John
e

Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming
RNIEBRSE &£

Mr. Zhang Guofu
BEHEELEE

Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold
BR E B 58 &£

Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel
AR E T E

= o

EE

REEAFEREAY BEFWTHAR:

(appointed as a Director on 18 August 2016 and re-designated

as an executive Director on 23 June 2017)
(RZFE—ANENNATNAEZTREFERR

—E—+FNAZFZHHALTEHTEE)
(appointed as a Director on 19 February 2020)
(R-ZEFEZFEF_ASNAEZFREF)
(appointed as a Director on 4 June 2020)
(RZEFZFEFNANAEZFRESE)

(retired as a Director on 26 June 2020)
(R-ZFEZFFENAZ NNARETEFBFK)

(resigned as a Director on 1 December 2020)
RZBE-ZFFES _HA—HAFTEFBRE)
(appointed as a Director on 24 November 2017)
(R=ZF—+Ff+—A=+AHEZTREE)
(retired as a Director on 26 June 2020)
RZIBEZFEXNAZFT NARTEFBF)
(appointed as a Director on 4 June 2020)
(RZFEZFFNANAEZLREE)
(appointed as a Director on 4 June 2020)
(RZEFE=ZFEFNANAEZFRESE)
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, the Directors shall
have power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional Director but the number of Directors so appointed
shall not exceed the maximum number determined from time
to time by the Shareholders in a general meeting. Any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, notwithstanding
any other provisions in the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being, or,
if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

For the biographical details of the Directors, please refer to
the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company pursuant to which he has agreed
to act as an executive Director for an initial term of three
years, which shall be renewed as determined by the Board or
the Shareholders. Either party is entitled to give not less than
one month’s notice to terminate the service agreement.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company to which he has agreed to act
as a non-executive Director or an independent non-executive
Director for a fixed term of three years, which shall be
renewed as determined by the Board or the Shareholders.
Except for the Director’s fees, no independent non-executive
Director is to receive any other emolument for acting as an
independent non-executive Director.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has proposed
or entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation other than the statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCY OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has provided
the Company with a confirmation of independence pursuant
to rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As such, the Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent as at the date of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, a Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities which he may incur or sustain in or about
the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
has been arranged for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors receive compensation in the form of an annual
director’'s fee while members of the senior management
receive compensation in the form of salaries, discretionary
bonuses and other allowances. The Group also reimburses
the Directors and senior management for expenses which are
necessarily and reasonably incurred in relation to the Group's
operations or in the course of discharging their duties to the
Group. The Remuneration Committee regularly reviews and
determines the remuneration packages of the Directors and
the senior management, taking into account factors including,
salaries payable by comparable companies, employment
conditions, responsibilities and the individual performance of
the Directors and senior management.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions
of each of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO"), which
were (a) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares

Nature of interest/

Name of Director Holding capacity

ordinary shares held

RROREBERGZHE

Percentage of issued
share capital of the
Company (Note 7)

Number of

RN

ERTREMN

BEEps EEME BREH6 FsEBEREE BAL (1)

Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert Interest of a controlled corporation 120,000,000 (L) 50%
(Notes 2)
BEELE EEEEEE S 120,000,000/ A& 13 (L)
(i #t2)

Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex Beneficial owner 10,000,000 417%

REMELE EREAA
Notes:
1. As at the date of this annual report, the Company's issued ordinary

share capital was HK$12,000,000 divided into 240,000,000 Shares of
HK$0.05 each.

2. Three Gates Investment Limited ("Three Gates Investment”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 15 August 2016 is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong, who is the chairman and an
executive director of the Company. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to
be interested in 120,000,000 Shares held by Three Gates Investment by
virtue of the SFO.

Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange according to
rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

10,000,000% M {7

By &t

1. RAFERESEH  ARANERTYLBERKRRK
7N /12,000,000 7T+ 9 £240,000,000 /% & i%
M {50.05/% 7T 1 B 17

2. Three Gates Investment Limited ([Three Gates
Investment]) 5 — R =T —<"F/\A+HH
CRBEXHESEMALH AR AERRAE
ERATESFEXLEZEEREB - HL R

BEHFRBEGEN  SXEWE BEAThree
Gates InvestmentFT#5120,000,000 0% A% 7 &9 #
BEXEBEN RZTEZZF+=A

Zt+—B ARRAEBEERETEZETHAER
AARSEAMEREIB(EERESK
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December
2020, the following persons or corporations (other than the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests and/or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares

Name of Substantial

Nature of interest/

Number of ordinary

FERRRAQFRAD K AR 5 Y

BakAXR

BEERMM WNZE-_EE+_A=+—
B W TATH EZB(RAREEREE
ITEA BBRAN AR R B 7 =k 48 78 B 1»
PHERBEESRBEEMNEXVIBE2R
3D HERETARRHKAL AR FH K
EIEP BB BT ATFTENET LM E
mREKBWT

REGREBRGZHFE

Percentage of issued
share capital of the

Shareholder Holding capacity shares held Company (Note 1)

N

ERITRAN

TERRER BEtME BRE6 FEEEREE Botk(#iFr)

Three Gates Investment Beneficial owner 120,000,000 50%
(Notes 2, 3)
EaERA 120,000,000 8% f&% 17
(Kit2 - 3)

Gold-Face Finance Limited Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 33.33%
Shares (Notes 3, 4)
HRGFBHER AT BEROEZOAL 80,000,000/% A& 12
(B33 - 4)

Upbest Credit and Mortgage Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 33.33%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
EREEREBERRAT BERODEZOAL 80,000,000 &
(B33 - 4)

Good Foundation Company Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 33.33%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
MEEAR QA BAEBRMDEROAL 80,000,0004% & 12
(Bfi£3 - 4)

Upbest Strategic Company Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 33.33%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
EERRBERDA BERODEROAL 80,000,000 f% 13
(BtiE3 - 4)

Upbest Financial Holdings Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 33.33%
Limited Shares (Notes 3, 4)
BERODEROAL 80,000,000 f% 13
(K a3 - 4)
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Percentage of issued

Name of Substantial Nature of interest/ Number of ordinary share capital of the

Shareholder Holding capacity shares held Company (Note 1)

RN

ERITREN

TERRER EEtE BRaH fEEBEREE BAL (1)

Upbest Group Limited Person having a security interest in 80,000,000 33.33%
Shares (Notes 3, 4)
EREBEERAA BEROEZOAL 80,000,000 & 17
(B33 - 4)

Mr. Leung Tat Chi Beneficial owner 17,460,466 5.68%
(Notes 5, 6)
REFRE EREAA 17460,466 % & {3
(HfiF5 - 6)

UBA Investments Limited Interest of controlled corporation 16,852,711 5.48%
(Notes 5, 7)
AR EBR AR EEEEEE S 16,852,711 1% f& 13
(HF 75 7)

Loyal Grace Investments Beneficial owner 16,852,711 5.48%
Limited (Notes 5, 7)
BEREBRLQTA EREAA 16,852,7118% A& 15
(HF 75~ 7)

DT Capital Limited Interest of controlled corporation 16,852,711 5.48%
(Notes 5, 8)
RUBRERRAT REHEBE R 16,852,7118% A& 15
(K175 - 8)

Key Summit Enterprises Beneficial owner 16,852,711 5.48%
Limited (Notes 5, 8)
ERBEAA 16,852,7118% B 15
(HfiE5 - 8)

Mr. Leong Chi Wai Interest of controlled corporation 17,875,972 5.82%
(Notes 5, 9)
Rkt REHEE & 17,875,972 0% 8% 15
(K at5 - 9)

Glory Radiance International Beneficial owner 17,875,972 5.82%
Limited (Notes 5, 9)
EaBEEA 17,875,972 % i% 13
(Hats5 - 9)
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As at the date of this annual report, the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital was HK$12,000,000 divided into 240,000,000 Shares of
HK$0.05 each.

Three Gates Investment is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Wong, who is the chairman and an executive Director of the Company.
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in 120,000,000 Shares
held by Three Gates Investment by virtue of his 100% shareholding
interest in Three Gates Investment.

80,000,000 Shares held by Three Gates Investment have been charged
in favour of Gold-Face Finance Limited (“Gold-Face”) as security for
a loan granted in favour of Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, the chairman,
chief executive officer, executive director and controlling shareholder of
the Company.

As Gold-Face is wholly-owned by Upbest Credit and Mortgage Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Upbest Strategic Company Limited
and Good Foundation Company Limited in equal parts, which in turn are
both wholly-owned by Upbest Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn
is wholly-owned by Upbest Group Limited, Upbest Credit and Mortgage
Limited, Upbest Strategic Company Limited, Good Foundation Company
Limited, Upbest Financial Holdings Limited and Upbest Group Limited
are all deemed to be interested in the security interest in the 80,000,000
Shares charged in favour of Gold-Face by virtue of the SFO.

A sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”)
dated 18 August 2020 was entered between the Company, Mr. Leung
Tat Chi (“Mr. Leung” “Vendor A"), Loyal Grace Investments
Limited (“Loyal Grace” or the “Vendor B"”), Key Summit Enterprises

or the
or the “Vendor C") and Glory Radiance
International Limited (“Glory Radiance” or the “Vendor D", together
with Vendor A, Vendor B and Vendor C, the “Vendors"), pursuant to

Limited (“Key Summit”

which the Company agreed to acquire (the “Acquisition”) and the
Vendors agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of and all the
obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred by Diamond Motto
Limited (the “Target Company”), being a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, to Vendor B, Vendor C and
Vendor D, respectively, on or at any time prior to the completion of the
Acquisition. Details of which are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 August 2020, 7 September 2020, 28 September
2020, 17 November 2020, 12 January 2021, 2 February 2021, and 9
February 2021, respectively and the circular of the Company dated 13
January 2021.
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As at the date of the Sale and Purchase Agreement, 1,600,000 Shares
was held by Mr. Leung Tat Chi. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase
Agreement, Mr. Leung Tat Chi agreed to sell and the Company agreed
to purchase 165 issued shares in the Target Company, in exchange of
the Company allotting and issuing 15,860,466 Shares to Mr. Leung
Tat Chi (and/or its nominee(s)) as consideration. Details of which are
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 18 August 2020,
7 September 2020, 28 September 2020, 17 November 2020 and 12
January 2021, respectively and the circular of the Company dated 13
January 2021. As such, Mr. Leung Tat Chi is deemed to be interested in
an aggregate of 17,460,466 Shares under the SFO, although 13,860,466
Shares are to be issued and have not yet been issued as at 31 December
2020.

Loyal Grace is a direct and wholly-owned subsidiary of UBA Investments
Limited. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Loyal Grace
agreed to sell and the Company agreed to purchase 50 issued shares
in the Target Company and 100% of all the obligations, liabilities and
debts owing or incurred by the Target Company to Loyal Grace on or
at any time prior to the completion of the Acquisition, in exchange of
the Company allotting and issuing 16,852,711 Shares to Loyal Grace
Investments Limited (and/or its nominee(s)) as consideration. UBA
Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in the 16,852,711
Shares to be allotted and issued to Loyal Grace pursuant to the Sale and
Purchase Agreement for the purpose of the SFO as at 31 December
2020.

Key Summit is a direct and wholly-owned subsidiary of DT Capital
Limited. Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Key Summit
agreed to sell and the Company agreed to purchase 50 issued shares
in the Target Company and 100% of all the obligations, liabilities and
debts owing or incurred by the Target Company to Key Summit on or at
any time prior to the completion of the Acquisition, in exchange of the
Company allotting and issuing 16,852,711 Shares to Key Summit (and/
or its nominee(s)) as consideration. DT Capital Limited is deemed to
be interested in the 16,852,711 Shares to be allotted and issued to Key
Summit pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement for the purpose
of the SFO as at 31 December 2020.

Glory Radiance is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Leong Chi Wai.
Pursuant to the Sale and Purchase Agreement, Glory Radiance agreed to
sell and the Company agreed to purchase 35 issued shares in the Target
Company and all the obligations, liabilities and debts owing or incurred
by the Target Company to Glory Radiance on or at any time prior to the
completion of the Acquisition, in exchange of the Company allotting
and issuing 17,875,972 Shares to Glory Radiance (and/or its nominee(s))
as consideration. Mr. Leong Chi Wai is deemed to be interested in the
17,875,972 Shares to be allotted and issued to Glory Radiance pursuant
to the Sale and Purchase Agreement for the purpose of the SFO as at 31
December 2020.
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Except as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Directors are not aware of any interests and short positions
owned by any other parties, other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company who held interests or short
positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company, which were required to be recorded under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or, who
was interested, directly or indirectly, in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Eligible participants may be granted share options in line with
the Share Option Scheme. The following is a summary of the
major terms of the Share Option Scheme:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract
and retain the best available personnel of the Group,
to provide additional incentive for employees working
full-time and part-time as well as other eligible personnel
under the Share Option Scheme and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

(b) Eligible participants

Eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme
include (i) any full-time and part-time employee of any
member of the Group; (i) any consultant or adviser of
any member of the Group; (iii) any director (including
executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group; (iv) any
substantial shareholder of any member of the Group; and
(v) any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent, customer,
business partner or service provider of any member of
the Group.
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Subscription price

The subscription price shall be determined solely by
the Board and notified to a participant of the Share
Option Scheme and shall be at least the higher of: (i)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the option, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share on the
date of grant of the option, provided that in the event of
fractional prices, the subscription price per Share shall be
rounded upwards to the nearest whole cent.

Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof.

Grant of options

An offer for the grant of options shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of seven days, including the day
in which the offer was made. The amount payable by the
grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of the option is HK$1.0.
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Maximum number of shares available for
subscription

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under the share option schemes
of the Company if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

Subject to sub-paragraphs (iii) and (iv) below, the
maximum number of Shares issuable upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company as from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (excluding,
for this purpose, Shares insurable upon the exercise
of options which have been granted but have lapsed
in accordance with the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the Shares in
issue upon the Listing Date.

The 10% limit as mentioned in sub-paragraph (ii)
above may be refreshed at any time by approval of
the Shareholders in a general meeting, provided that
the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled or lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
other share option schemes of the Company) will
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
limit as “refreshed”. A circular must be sent to the
Shareholders containing the information as required
pursuant to the relevant GEM Listing Rules.
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(iv) Subject to sub-paragraph (i) above, the Company
may seek separate approval from the Shareholders
in general meeting for granting any option under
the Share Option Scheme beyond the 10% limit
under sub-paragraph (ii) and (iii) above, provided
that the options under the Share Option Scheme in
excess of the limit are granted only to participants
specifically identified by the Company before such
approval is sought. In such event, the Company
must send a circular to the Shareholders containing
a generic description of the specified persons who
may be granted and the purpose of granting such
options to the specified persons with an explanation
of how the terms of the options will serve the
purpose and all other information required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) under
the Share Option Scheme or any other option schemes
of the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue, unless approved by the Shareholders in the
manner stipulated in the Share Option Scheme.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing from the date on which
the scheme is adopted and will expire on 24 November
2027.

Termination of the Share Option Scheme

The Company, by resolution in general meeting or the
Board may at any time terminate the operation of the
Share Option Scheme and in such event no further
options of the Share Option Scheme will be offered.
However, those options granted prior to such termination
shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the previous provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

No Share option has been granted since the adoption of the
Share Option Scheme.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Shareholder’s loan agreement between Mr. Wong
and Tseyu International

On 31 March 2020, Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert, a controlling
shareholder of the Company and an executive Director (“Mr.
Wong”), and Tseyu International Trading Company Limited
("Tseyu International”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a shareholder’'s loan agreement in
respect of the shareholder’s loans provided by Mr. Wong to
Tseyu International. The shareholder’s loans, amounting to
HK$19,171,000, are interest-free, unsecured and repayable in
cash on demand. As the shareholder’'s loans were provided
on normal commercial terms or better and were not secured
by the assets of the Group, the shareholder’'s loans are fully
exempt under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Further
details of the shareholder’s loan agreement between Mr.
Wong and Tseyu International are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 31 March 2020, 21 April 2020, 8
May 2020, 5 June 2020, 3 July 2020, 14 August 2020, 18
September 2020, 16 October 2020, 20 November 2020, 17
December 2020, 28 January 2021 and the circular dated 16
February 2021.
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Loan agreement between Mr. Wong and Guangzhou
Xinhua

On 31 March 2020, Mr. Wong and Guangzhou Xinhua Thread
Company (EM¥EZZEER2A) ("Guangzhou Xinhua"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement in relation to the intra-group current
accounts balance in a sum of RMB16,760,277 (equivalent to
HK$18,603,907) due from Mr. Wong to Guangzhou Xinhua. It
was agreed that, among other things, interest shall be payable
by Mr. Wong to Guangzhou Xinhua to be accrued at a rate of
2% per annum on the outstanding current accounts balance
from the date of the loan agreement and the current accounts
balance shall be repaid by Mr. Wong within three years from
the date of the loan agreement. Such loan agreement and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute financial
assistance and connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and are therefore subject
to the reporting, announcement, circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the loan agreement
between Mr. Wong and Guangzhou Xinhua are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 31 March 2020, 21
April 2020, 8 May 2020, 5 June 2020, 3 July 2020, 14 August
2020, 18 September 2020, 16 October 2020, 20 November
2020, 17 December 2020, 28 January 2021 and the circular
dated 16 February 2021. Save as disclosed above, there are
no other transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020
under the definition of connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it has complied with
the applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

The Directors and the controlling shareholders of the Company
have confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report, none of the Directors,
controlling Shareholders or any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) engaged
in any businesses that compete or may compete with the
business of the Group, or had any other conflict of interest
with the Group.

On 24 November 2017, each of Mr. Wong Kwok Wai,
Albert and Three Gates Investment, being the controlling
Shareholders, entered into a non-competition undertaking
in favour of the Company, details of which were set out
in the section headed “Relationship with our Controlling
Shareholders ~— Non-competition Undertaking” in the
Prospectus. Such undertakings have been fully complied with
and enforced during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report.

The Board confirms that as at the date of this annual report,
no other matters are required to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders and the potential investors.

Further, the independent non-executive Directors confirm that
they have reviewed the enforcement of such undertakings and
conclude that there are no outstanding issues regarding the
undertakings that need to be raised with the Shareholders and
the Company.

SANCTIONS UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company provided an
undertaking to the Stock Exchange that it would not use the
proceeds from the Share Offer or any funds raised through the
Stock Exchange to finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly,
activities or business with, or for the benefit of, countries
that are sanctions under international sanction laws, or any
sanctioned government, entity or individual.
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To ensure its compliance with this undertaking and to further
enhance its risk management, the Group will continue to
evaluate any business opportunities with those countries
sanctioned under international sanction laws and will have
delegated members of the senior management of the
Company review the transaction documents from customers
or potential customers from countries sanctioned under
international sanctions laws.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Directors confirm that during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
complied with the minimum public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2020

Completion of the major transaction

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
18 August 2020, 7 September 2020, 28 September 2020,
20 October 2020, 17 November 2020, 17 December 2020,
12 January 2021, 2 February 2021 and the circular of the
Company dated 12 January 2021, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of
the entire issued share capital of Diamond Motto Limited. The
Company has completed the acquisition on 9 February 2021
and disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 9
February 2021.
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Subscription and placing of new shares under
general mandate

On 19 January 2021, the Company entered into the
subscription agreement with the subscriber, pursuant to
which the subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 24,000,000 new Shares at the subscription Price of
HK$0.30 per subscription share. Also, the placing agent and
the Company entered into the placing agreement, pursuant to
which the Company has conditionally agreed to place through
the placing agent, on a best effort basis, up to 24,000,000
pacing shares at the placing price of HK$0.30 per placing
share to not less than six Placees who and whose beneficial
owners shall be Independent Third Parties. The subscription
and placing of the new shares has been completed on 11
February 2021. Details of the subscription and placing of the
new shares are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 19 January 2021, 2 February 2021 and 11 February
2021.

AUDITOR

Asian Alliance has been appointed as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 31 December 2020 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young with effect
from 18 November 2020. A resolution for the reappointment
Asian Alliance as auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Shen You Holdings Limited
Wong Kwok Wai, Albert
Chairman, chief executive officer and executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
T8 37 1% B AN R

/ ERN(EE)SHMEBEFAERATE
Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited

To the shareholders of Shen You Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shen
You Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67
to 77, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described
in the “Basis for qualified opinion” section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

On 14 January 2020, the Independent Commission Against
Corruption (the “ICAC") conducted a search of the registered
office of the Company and the Company's Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer is under investigation by the ICAC.
Furthermore, pursuant to a press release made by the ICAC
on 25 March 2020, two individuals have been charged by the
ICAC for alleged bribery and misconduct in public office and
the name of the Company was associated with the charges.
As the ICAC investigation is ongoing, the information available
is very limited at this stage. We are unable to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence to evaluate whether the
investigation may have any impact on the operations and the
financial positions of the Group.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019, were audited by another
auditor who expressed a qualified opinion on those statements
on 31 March 2020.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

B R 5% RERE

REEXEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBRTEEMRERSENS E

We identified impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables to the Group's
consolidated financial position and the involvement
of subjective judgement and management
estimates in evaluating the expected credit losses
(“ECL") of the Group's trade receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

EEBRU RS RBERENGERNSHERERZS
B TDHRERXZIREY EXENHKESHE
MABERERN WP REFTMH EEER®BEH
ANERZZHENTRREEER((AHEEBE ]
ZEBHEBREBEME -

As disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’'s net trade
receivables amounting to approximately
HK$10,034,000 have been net off with ECL on
trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$333,000 as at 31 December 2020.
BUEETBERERMFI0MEE R F
F+_A=+—HB  BEHEEERIXZIRENAR
10,034,000/ 7T - B 2 H1 5 FE Y 32 5 X 1E & 8 H
Z B E184%333,0008 7T °

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade receivables included:

EEREERSRARENGRETZIEFERE:

o Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the credit loss allowance
for trade receivables;

e HBHHEEEMABUIZINEBREREG MR

SRR

o Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including trade receivables ageing analysis as
at 31 December 2020, on a sample basis, by
comparing individual items in the analysis with
the relevant sales invoices and other supporting
documents;

e HMERAAEEENERBERMAEZER(BER
CE_TFFT AT BERNERRSRIEBRE
DINAIERE  AERBHSMHEEHFIEAR
HEERZEREMAAREHE XHHEE LR :

o Challenging management'’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 31 December 2020, including
their identification of significant balances
and credit-impaired receivables and, the
reasonableness of management'’s grouping of the
remaining debtors into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss
rates applied in each category in the provision
matrix (with reference to historical default rates
and forward-looking information);

e HEBEEBEER-_Z-_TF+-_A=1+—HnH
REEBEERENRKRR SHHIE 2 B & HE -
BRERSFHERGEHRREIREE R B E KR
SHREBEZH BEREERSABHBERTEY
ADBEEBREEENTRER - UARHEBEEE
EEOBEEREUAMTBREX(BERLENX
RAEEENEBERELHES
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

FE W XX 5 R IH R E

REEXEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ESEEERTREHEERBENT &

As disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management of the Group
estimates the amount of ECL of trade receivables
based on provision matrix through grouping of
various debtors that have similar loss patterns,
after considering internal credit ratings of debtors,
ageing, repayment history and/or past due status
of respective trade receivables. Estimated loss
rates are based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information. In
addition, trade receivables that are credit-impaired
or with significant balances are assessed for ECL
individually. The loss allowance amount of the
credit-impaired trade receivables are measured
as the difference between the asset’'s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows with the consideration of expected
future credit losses.
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Evaluating the disclosures regarding the
impairment assessment of trade receivables in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements;
and

AR A SRR 29 & B B IE W R 5K
HRENEHHEE: &

Testing subsequent settlements of credit-
impaired trade receivables, on a sample basis,
by inspecting supporting documents in relation
to cash receipt from trade debtors subsequent to
the end of the current reporting period.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of other receivables

H fth 78 W 5K TH R {E
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEHEBRTEEMRERSENS E

We identified impairment assessment of other
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, combined with
management’'s estimation in measuring the
ECL under ECL model as stipulated in HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9").
EEFBREMERKIE 2 RENGIES B ET
FEH DERBRBGEVBRRTEHZ2EEN -
URERERBZEAMNBHRELENZSRI @ T A
((ERMBREEUNFEIRDMACEEREREE
BEREEXAARGEEHEESFB 2GR -

As explained in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, the balance of impairment
allowances on other receivables was approximately
HK$3,561,000 as at 31 December 2020, of which
approximately HK$18,000 has been charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

WA HHRERM I R =FF
+TZA=+—8" E@FW%EZﬂ@ﬁ%M%
A4 7%3,561,0008 L - MARBE_ZE_ZTF+_A
=+—HIEFE - ﬁ$mpw%mam%éﬁéﬁ
W BR ©

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of trade and other receivables included:

Lo E W R 5 IE & H th B U FR IE R (E BT b P
ﬁZﬁF“%-

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's
expected credit loss policy and methodology for
impairment assessment;

e ER ESEEHEEBEBRHRENRETHRMERN
(P z~

o Reviewing the reasonableness of management's
estimation in expected timing of collection and
the credit quality of individual debtors, including
the background of the debtors and their credit
worthiness, collection history and value of
collaterals; and

e BRABTEEMIGTHEAMNEBAKS ﬁ%hﬁ&h
EExZNeEt AREBAERREESE
WHELERERREE: X

o Checking the accuracy of the ageing classification
of the others receivable balances on a sample
basis.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) ARELEE(E)
Impairment of other receivables How our audit addressed the key audit matter
H fih fE W FIR R E EEEBRTEEREERETENS &

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the others receivable and the
sufficiency of impairment loss allowance based
on information including credit profile of the
debtors, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, ageing of the others receivable,
value of the collaterals and expected timing and
amount of realisation of outstanding balances.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the ability of the
debtors to repay the outstanding balances in order
to estimate the expected credit losses for the
impairment assessment.
EREBERBEBRANGESRR ELEETH -
HigHEERE EMERRENKRE  BERmE
ERERARENEHRNEHKARSEZFEHNE
HRT i B fth R R IBE & & AT Uk 1B K2 R (B B 1B B R
EERE - ERENZRARTEBBABER
BRAEHKENVAEEER  LEFRETGEH
BHEEEE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

NE BERREUAREAEEERE

REEXEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESHERTREFBEREENGE

The carrying values of the Group's property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (“ROU") as
at 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
HK$4,090,000 and HK$3,763,000 respectively,
after making provisions of HK$563,000 and
HK$902,000 respectively. The carrying values of
these assets are reviewed annually by management
for potential indicators of impairment. For assets
where such indicators exist, management engages
an independent external valuer to assist them
to perform detailed impairment review of the
recoverable amount of these non-financial assets.
R 9 Bl #E i # 563,000 st % 902,000 7T 14 -
EEER_Z_TFT_A=1+—HZYE BE

RAERMEE A /4,000,000 - FHABEEE ([##
AREE]) MEHL /37630008  ZFEERN
FHEHEEESFEHUBRERSFEEER
ERR BREELXEDRNEENS ERES
ZEBUNBEEMAGRERZEIESRE
EH R E & FE T AR EELR -

We identified the impairment of property, plant
and equipment and ROU as a key audit matter
because the assessment involves a significant
degree of management judgements and estimates
in determining the key assumptions.

EEBYME BEAKZXBAKLERESERER
ARBEREXER  DARFATEREETIE
BEREIEAEETEEH B RMEE -

The significant judgements and estimates
and related disclosures on the movements of
properties, plant and equipment and ROU are
included in Notes 16 and 17 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

EHZENHE BRERREBURGEAREEZD
MBERABMGESREABREZD NS NEGES T B
HwEMFE16R7 -

Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist
us in evaluating the methodologies used by the
independent external valuer for determining the
recoverable amount, and assessing the discount
rate and market data used in the assessment of
the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment and ROU.
EENBEREFER (AT B8R ZRAMEEZRIA
BT E T4 98 2 S0 3Bk (B R0 A E 7] UL Bl & BB B
FERNFE WHERARYE BERRENARER
EEMWE S ET AR ERT SR o

We also examined the underlying data used such as
management projection on the future revenues and
operating results by comparing with the financial
performance of each cash-generating unit (“CGU")
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
examining the business development plans and
historical annual growth of each CGU to evaluate the
growth rate of each CGU used in the projection.
EENE BN BEE-_E_EF+-_A=+—HItF
EsReEEEN(BeELEBENDNUBRE &
BAEANHEASREWGINBEERR S REEFEE
MEBERMN IRBAXERAELERSEL
BUMBEFERER UAHREBEARERANER €
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the annual report of the
Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

8 Az BAD R & (88)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE BB ERREE B RROESE

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#&)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of o BHEEZEUHRBELELSTHTHER
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the REEMNER TRBEEGHEZ
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty REHTEEHEHAES BEE5EH
exists related to events or conditions that may cast BELERNNELEEARENSH
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a IMAEENERTEEN - WA
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty EEBEFEERTHEEENER

==

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content °
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding °
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance &%
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and #3[&
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 25 £
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify iR [&
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a &%
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical SF#H
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate fE&
with them all relationships and other matters that may F&

BESAAGZBMRETRFBIELR
BMBBRTNEBRE WA
ZERBEARD  AABHRESFH
ER-BENERNERBERZH
MBREARALESHBEREE -
A RREHSARAELEEH &
SEEERFELE -

HAEFEAVBRR(EBERBE)NE
B2 HBERAR UREEM
BHREAREBEABERRQAFE2INNT A
BRAERZNREN -

B EEEBETERBAEBEIN
MBENERSENRENEZRE
NEREBESAVBZRERNER -
BEERERE EEBEREOREE
e BEENEERELEERE -

ERBEERRETRE)IEX
MERZHEEREAETZERER  B8FF
EZHEERNENEKRASZES

o

NAREEBRHEER  RKREFEE
MEBTEBERAE YERREEBAEN

BRAEREZBEIMEHEENMARE

tEE AREEANELT #H

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and BRI FTERECHER BB M 1TE) Sk [ &8 3 ©

where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)

8 3 Az SR R & (88

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Asian Alliance (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Lam Chik Tong

Practising Certificate Number: P05612

8/F., Catic Plaza
8 Causeway Road
Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

26 March 2021

BRBMHERFESYBBRRNEM

(&)

ESENREREERBNERTREEAD
PEREVBRENERTEREEZNZ
ZERE AEREXER EZEREEW
BEFRPARFFE > BIREARIERE
FrAREZFR AEZRRTEER
THHAZER AABEAERHAREN
THBERANBRABEN KNG - 02
BRESER -

ER(EB)ETHEERERAT
HEE A

A E

HMEFEEZHRI  P05612

= B E8
i 9 /&
fin 2= K =818

—E-—49=AH=+7"H
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Ii\\j‘ﬂ\/\ 80 M ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

A K

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

Notes
B it

Revenue I &= 6
Cost of sales $H & K AR
Gross profit £
Other (losses) gains, net Hith (B518) = 5 58 7
Selling and distribution expenses 5% & 5 8 5 %
Administrative expenses THRAX
Impairment loss on financial TRLE EREBEFE

assets, net
Other expenses HAth F 2
Finance costs Bh & KA 8
Loss before tax B i B0 &S 18
Income tax expense FIBHAX 9
Loss for the year FRNEIE 10
Other comprehensive income HEMZ2MHUY A (FE)

(loss)
ltems that may be reclassified RE 1# B f] 7] 58 2 %7 75 %8 2

subsequently to profit or loss: BEmmIEE

Exchange differences arising BMEBIINEBRIE K 5

on translation of foreign
operations

Other comprehensive income EEHMEEDBA(ERE) -

(loss) for the year, net of BEHRMAER

income tax
Total comprehensive expense 2FZ2HEEHAE

for the year
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS & AFHEEAEWS

OF THE PARENT
Loss per share SRER

Basic and diluted (HK$ cents) BN #5E BL) 15

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

2020

—E-%F
HK$"000

FTERT

44,984
(34,537)

10,447

(1,077)

(5,745)
(15,407)

(146)

(3,302)
(365)

(15,595)

(15,595)

(11,505)

(11,505)

2019
—hEF
HK$'000
THET

58,746
(47,416)

11,330
2,039
(7393)

(13,508)

(3,103)
(4,709)
(1,313)

(16,657)
(2,562)

(19,219)

(1,415)

(1,415)

(20,634)

(20,634)

(Restated)
(#EH)

(8.66)



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ra IR R

At 31 December 2020 R _-FE_-FF{+ - H=4+—H

Notes
B it
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I 16
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 17
Financial asset at fair value through ERAREFABRD (R
profit or loss (“FVTPL") AAEBEFABEDD

TREE 8
Deposit and other receivables e Kk HMEWKIE 20
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19
Trade receivables FE W 32 5 5 IE 20
Deposit and other receivables e Kk HME W KIE 20
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHE & 21
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAEE
Trade payables BT R 5 I8 22
Other payables and accruals H th & 5 5% IE— K

T E H 22
Bank borrowings RITIE R 23
Lease liabilities HEBE 24
Tax payables FE < %% 18
NET CURRENT ASSETS HEEEFE
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBAE

LIABILITIES

2020
—E-FF
HK$000

TER

12,997

12,070
10,034
14,121
11,918

48,143

5,510
4,583

1,956
641

12,690

35,453

2019
—hE
HK$'000
TAT

6,175
5,630

4,742
1,908

18,355
11,382
10,404

4,821

34,531

61,138

5,188

4,696
19,967
2,155
1,135

33,152

27,986

46,341

HEZERARAT /2020F 3K
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e B R(E)

At 31 December 2020 R _-FE_-FF{+ - H=4+—H

2020 2019
—EB_EH —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i FE T F& T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 24 3,869
NET ASSETS EEFRE 42,472
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR #E
Share capital fi% A< 26 12,000 8,000
Reserves Ee 33,608 34,472
TOTAL EQUITY BB 45,608 42,472

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 190 #$/8HEH190HE Z R AWM B WMERD K=
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of T_—HZ=ZA-+"BEEFEHELEK

Directors on 26 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: M YHTINERSE
Wong Kwok Wai, Albert Leung King Yue, Alex
HEEE REW
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AEEDm P ER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ
Share Merger  Statutory Exchange Accumulated
Share capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
ke RHEE  AHRE  EERE  EXRGE  RTEE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TER TET TER TER
(Note (3)) (Note (b))
(W itl) (W)

t 1 January 2019 RZE-N& 8,000 57751 (1,000) 5,670 7452 (14,767) 63,106
-A-H
Loss for the year EREE - - - = = (19,219) (19,219)

Other comprehensive 2 EERCENR
expense for the year, FRHE)
net of income tax

ltems that may be REGBETZEHN
reclassified FEEERY
subsequently toprofit B H -
or loss:
Exchange differences BEBHNERR - - - - (1,415) - (1,415)

arising on translation ERES
of foreign Operations

Total comprehensive LE2HEBER - - - - (1,415) (19,219) (20,634)
expense for the year

At 31 December 2019 and R=F—-NF+=A l 57,751 (1,000) ! ! (33,986) 42472
1 January 2020 =+-Hk=E=
Z5-f-H
Loss for the year ENEE (15,595) (15,595)
Other comprehensive EEEMR2EMRAB
income for the year, nEHREH
net of income tax
ltems that may be REGBEI#ZEHN
reclassified THEEERY
subsequently to profit BE -
or loss:
Exchange differences HEBNEHHNEL
arising on translation =4
of foreign operations
Total comprehensive 2E2ABA(ER) f (15,595) (11,505)
income (expense) for g%

the year

Issue of shares under REERETRR

rights issues (Hiit26)
(Note 26)
At 31 December 2020 g 3 | 12,000 68,392 (1,000) ! 10,127 (49,581) 45,608
_‘f' A

mERRERAR /20205% S
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

[\\/ A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

Notes:

(a)

—H— \N 7/
/ ~ II\EIII\

gHxR(E

The merger reserve represented the difference between the Company’s
shares of the nominal value of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries
acquired and the Company’s cost of acquisition of the subsidiaries under
common control upon the reorganisation undergone by the Group.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the companies
registered in the PRC shall appropriate a certain percentage of their net
profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) calculated under
the accounting principles generally applicable to the PRC enterprises to
the reserve fund. When the balance of this reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity's capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset prior years' losses or to increase
capital. However, the balance of the statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the capital after these usages. After
making the appropriation to the statutory surplus reserve, the companies
may also appropriate their profits for the year to the discretionary surplus
reserve upon approval by the board of directors or the shareholders in a

general meeting.

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

i

(a)

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

EHRBEDEASEETEAR  ARAENK
BHBRARBRERANHEEREARFKEZH
REGHOHBRRNKAZMOER -

REFEBBZEZER RPBEEMORAE
BRETFECELEERNSFRAUGENR
BAFNETEA L (REFHEANEFEBHRR)
BARHEED ZAHABEENEREERER
50% F + R AT B 15 0R & 2 4 A4 AR I AE ] —
SRR AEBHBRBEEUTABNEHEATFES
BYIRE - A ERERNEAERREFBER
RORBEFRFEERN25% © ()5 E B 8 & HE

HBRE  ARAMAKLEEFRABRRABRRKR
BLAER  BAFEEMNBEEERHBHE



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR MER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Fair value loss/(gains) on financial asset at
FVTPL

Depreciation

Depreciation of ROU assets

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Gain on early termination of a lease

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised in respect of

E_FFS _A=+—HIFE

BR 75t B 85 18

CE
BamA
Al B A
AR EETA RS

5 H)

EREEAAEBEBR(OE

e
EREEENE

HEME BERRFEHEE

7 fita
A LR

B X 5 5R0E R B
TR HE R /DMEEETE
?ﬁ#%%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%\z

i, Ji& U 3%
b X

#)

non-financial assets VERIEN SR
Operating loss before working capital RTEEESRBAKESE
changes
(Increase) decrease in inventories 7 & (38 ) /A

Decrease in trade receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposit and other
receivables

Increase in trade payables

Decrease in other payables and accruals

JE W 32 5 5 R R

BNHRE ZEREM
& W 3K TR S

FE 4 32 55X 42 A

HEMNFRAREHE

FBRL

Cash (used in) generated from operations
Income taxes (paid) refunded

Re(FAIFBRSE
(BEMEEMER

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

ReE (A MBRE

mEFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of financial asset at FVTPL

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest received from loans to a vendor

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Repayment of loans to a vendor

REED

BERAABARR
F

BEME BELARME

]t R & S E 2 A2

TR ERE

HEYE  BERRBRERE

BEREERER

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REZB(FAIFAEES

REFHR

2020

— 7 — £F
HK$'000
TERT

(15,595)
365
(592)
429
1,092
1,674

1,049
(64)

146

1,465

(10,031)
(688)
242

(7.410)

31
(113)

(17,689)
(494)

(18,183)

2019
—NF
HK$'000
TAER

(16,657)
1,313
(214)
(110)
955
1,684

18

3,103

31922

(5,986)
3,108
7,367

(2,295)

192
(2,163)

223
121

344

(371)
214

14
1,013

870
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
/\‘/\ IE \/;ﬁiﬁ(%\g

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —FT - ZFTF+ _H=+—HIFFZ
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mh & SEE
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITER (15,033) (46,646)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEARE (1,935) (1,021)
Interest paid BERF B (365) (1,313)
Bank borrowings raised 55K ﬁ1 b2 - 46,462
Proceeds from rights issue IR BT 15 3B 14,641 —
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING METBMARSEE
ACTIVITIES (2,692) (2,518)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BEeRBESEBYURDFE
EQUIVALENTS (21,346) (1,304)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FNRERELEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 29,597 30,938
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE EXgHnyE
CHANGES (37)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND &£XBEERBEEZEY
OF THE YEAR 11,918 29,597
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRBESEEYIM
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RBTHES 11,918 34,531
Bank overdraft RITEX - (4,934)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkREEED 29,597
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

& B % R 3R BT R

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law (as revised) of the Cayman lIslands on
18 August 2016. The registered office address of the
Company is Windward 3, Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box
1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Company’s subsidiaries were principally
engaged in the manufacture and trading of sewing
threads and broad categories of garment accessories.

In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Three Gates Investment
Limited, which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"”) with limited liability and is controlled by
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai, Albert (“Mr. Wong").

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars ("HK$"), which is also the presentation currency
of Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and
interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as
the "HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In
addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and the Companies Ordinances.

(b) In January 2020, the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (the “ICAC”) conducted a search
of the registered office of the Company and the
Company’s chairman and chief executive officer
was under investigation (the “Investigation”) with
no prosecution issued by the ICAC up to the date of
approval of these consolidated financial statements.

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

—REH

ARRRZZE—A~"FENATN\BRIE
RERSRAREKEEI ERM =8
STMALRERRERDAF - AR
7]/ T 9% 55 58 b 1k AWindward 3,
Regatta Office Park, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands °

RRBIRREERRA - KRFWNB
RAFRATERFTRODGNESER
KHHEERES -

EERARAEEERERRAAR
Three Gates Investment Limited ' Jj
RNEBRAXZBES(RBEEZHES))
AR BERAT - AEREELEE
(EEE])ZEH -

Apmlzhea®rET(ER])
RARAZ2NZEH -

llm@gz%

(a) ZEHFEEUBRERDBESR B
S Ag((EEETMA®))
EHHEETBHREEL(E
BHMEREEA]  BESE
Bl(TEBgstEADRZE M4
BMAEEBMBREERN]D WA
BEEABEERERE - LI
HREWBKBEREEEAB AR

SHARRANAGEME A5 LM

Al(IGEMEtmHRADEEE A

A& B 45 E &9 3 A % ER o

b) RZZEZZTF—F BRHRRAZE
([BEHAB)HEARF KM
MERETHESE  MAAAE
F%TTIEAZ?@%JZEHEE XHE
([BED BEEZEHEaUH
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ% [ /NE S S
BRHEBEF -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

2.

B B R R W e (48)

INAAS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

As at the date of this annual report, the ICAC
investigation is still ongoing. The Company will make
further announcement(s) as and when appropriate
pursuant to the requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”), the Investigation does not have material
impact to these financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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mAEEE(E)

RARERR  RBRABHAEMEE
T RRAEBEAEFER LR A
HETEEERRIELE—F DS -

ARAEE(EZDRR -
EUBHMRUBERATE -

n|||~

PRI R BT ERMB®RE
ZA(THRMBERELER])

REFERBEERZHITEBUHK
HEARHEERT AR

RAEE AEERHEEEVHHRE
RERERE-_FT_FTF—A—HB%
ZERBZFEDRHERNERNE
BV BBRESEE R IERRELD
BT RTIEE GRS HEMD
RETZBEMBRELEL

BEAFEUEIR ERANESE
k&S g £8|
858 (57T &)

& 75 B 7% 3R 2 A
E35% (BT &)

BAMEmELER
FOR - BEA A
R EINRRE
75 B 7% R 2 A
FE75% (BFTAR)

XHHE &

FlERERE

BT X Pt &5 EARFEERN
ERIZEEMBRELER  HAE
BAFERBEFENRALEAR
MHMRRESEZEESWB R
RIFBNBRESIBREATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

3.

& B % R R M (8)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to
HKAS1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8 for the first time in the current year. The
amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decision that the primary users of general purposes
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statement, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify
that materiality depends on the nature or magnitude
of information, either individually or in combination
with other information, in the context of the financial
statements taken as a whole.

3.

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

FEREEETERSE 15!%&?}%@*1“&
BIZE8SE (BEI R EAZERNEE
AEBERAFEEXRERAEES
STERAFEIR KRB AT ERFESH (B
AR REBIARB-TE RO
EFE-CHEPHBMIER - R
IBEEFHEREEAETREH e
Z-RENMBBENETZAPLPE
RZEWHEREREEEFERS
ERHNMBERFIELRNRE A
EBERNBERK JZFEBFIAN
BE BEAEBRAREREERY
BHmEAPHMENXEZ (EFs8H
mEREE M) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4r A

INAAS

3.

B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIALREPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS

9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Hong Kong Accounting
Guideline 5 (Revised)

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 24

COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)"

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

Merger Accounting for
Common Control?
Combinations

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The Directors anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the

foreseeable future.
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ﬁﬁﬁré;ﬁﬂ B EZA ) (&)

EEMERNKRER T BB

HwREEA R EEFT AR

AEEVERFEATIEBMGE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
GEM Listing Rules and by the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17
(before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of Assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4r A

INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income/consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4r A

INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1) power over the investee, (2) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

i.e. when

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

B B R R W e (48)

INAAS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for an presented on a net
basis.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components and the
aggregate stand-alone price of non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract (Continued)

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

& B %5 R MY A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group
entities at the date of initial application. The incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group entities
range from 4.75% to 8.80%.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

& B %5 R MY A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risk and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating lease.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at commencement date
at amounts equal to net investments in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases.
Interest income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Nonmonetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of “Currency
translation reserve” (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

4.

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

FESTBE (&)
I
#ﬁ%x1ﬂ BEROYBRE

A ERAMEEERINER
WWQLHZX%&Q%“EWE$
R -MBEHR RINEFED
ERBEENRZBEANRITEXEN
BmE - NI ERAARBIERD
FEREBEREETAANEEABT
MERBHMGLE - LINEE LKA
AEZIEBHESANTENRE -

EWIAEBE
PE X ERR

7
o

BEREFBRE
REEHHEZES

FEXZ
e

M2 HEAMBREAMS  AKHE
XEB2BEERABREBRESHRL
BTEXBRER/AKBZZ2IER
(BET) - WARBXEBZEYAF
VEXHRE EAMNERZE(NA)
REMEERARNER T RER
AREIEL F @R (GEASEE
S (WER) -

HEZERARAT /2020F 3K

99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

B B R R W e (48)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalization rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at
the earlier of when the Group entity can no longer
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when it
recognises any related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits (Continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
Shares/Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without taking
into consideration all non-market vesting conditions is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share-based payments reserve). At the end
of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate
of the number of equity instruments expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in “share option reserve”
will be transferred to “share capital”. After vesting date,
when the vested share options are later forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in “share option reserve” will be
transferred to “retained profits”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied the same taxable entity by the same
taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred
tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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B B R R W e (48)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the
asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or the group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
a cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., FESTHHEE)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) ERMITE(H)

Financial assets (Continued) cREEGE)

Classification and subsequent measurement of THEECHBREHEE (E)
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if: ETIBERT eRHEESEAF

FEE:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern

of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective

as a hedging instrument.

In addition,

mismatch.

the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting

It b
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(a)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured
at FVTOCI. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(b)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other (loss)
gains, net” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables and other receivables which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’'s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
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(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor's
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of
default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower
to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a debt instrument to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade' as per globally
understood definitions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(1)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and revises
them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit
risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

4.

& B %5 R M A ()

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at
the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease receivable
in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January
2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to 1 January 2019).

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past
due information and relevant credit information such
as forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristic when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and accruals, lease liabilities and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into a sublease arrangement as
lessor on certain buildings. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting
a major part of the economic life of the leasehold land
and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of
the leasehold land, that it retains substantially all the
significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leasehold land which are leased out and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

5.

& B %5 R M A ()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

(a)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to enterprise income tax in
the PRC. Judgement is required in determining the
amount of the provision for taxation and the timing
of payment of the related taxations. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

5.

B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Income tax and deferred tax (Continued)

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future, which is a key source of estimation
uncertainty especially in the current year given the
significant uncertainty on the potential disruption of
Group's operations due to the Covid-19 pandemic.
In cases where the actual future taxable profits
generated are less or more than expected, or
change in facts and circumstances which result
in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a
material reversal or further recognition of deferred
tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in
profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal
or further recognition takes place.

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments

As at 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's
financial assets amounting to approximately
HK$5,144,000 (2019: HK$4,742,000) are measured
at fair value with fair value being determined based
on an independent valuer and the surrender value
of the policy of the financial assets. Judgement and
estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors
could result in material adjustments to the fair value
of these instruments. Further details are contained
in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statement.
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5.

& B %5 R M A ()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(c)

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)

Provision of ECL for trade and other
receivables

Trade receivables and other receivables with
significant balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually.

In addition, the Group uses practical expedient
in estimating ECL on trade receivables which
are not assessed individually using a provision
matrix. The provision rates are based on aging of
debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group's historical default rates
and forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-
looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group's trade receivables and other receivables are
disclosed in Note 29(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

5.

& B %5 R M A ()

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(e) Estimated impairment of property, plant and

equipment and ROU assets

Property, plant and equipment and ROU assets are

stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset
is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use,
the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including ROU assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.

Following a review of the business, which takes
into account the deteriorating outlook for the textile
industry and the Group’'s future business plan,

management has reassessed the carrying values
for all the property, plant and equipment and ROU
assets as at 31 December 2020. An impairment
provision of HK$1,465,000 (2019:HK$3,922,000)
has been recorded to reduce the carrying value of
the Group’s non-financial assets to their estimated
recoverable value, which is the higher of fair value

less costs of disposal, and value in use (“VIU").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e RN R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6.

The Group identifies its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Group’s executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group's business components and review of these
components’ performance. There is only one business
component in the internal reporting to the executive
directors, which is the manufacture and selling of
sewing threads business. The Group's assets and capital
expenditure are principally attributable to this business
component.

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

{/.(«M :\‘cﬂﬁﬁ

AEERBEEHANASEATES
S DA 18 F B 5 B X R AR AR AR
nméﬁ RFHRERBRSZE
MREBORENANBHEFER &

|EREN A RRmMEDHEN - &
—EAEXBLBOARMRTESER
MEH NBRAGRHERBEERS -
AEENEEREARAXETEZAZ
EBHIEE -

L

H

Jﬁfiﬂ

Kt

huj

%

(i) REBEFEHANWE:

2020 2019
sl — T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Types of goods or services: Emci R ER:
Sale of industrial products HELXEm 58,746
Geographical markets (Note): &G (M7 -
Mainland China B A 26,081 32,968
Overseas pSEN 15,081 22,233
Hong Kong BB 3,822 3,545
Total revenue from contracts with REEEEHN
customers Uy 25 58,746
Timing of revenue recognition: BRK R
Goods transferred at a point in time RE-—KRHEMEEN
5 44,984 58,746

Notes:  The revenue information is based on the locations of
the customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

Non-current assets

oA
=B

Mainland China
Hong Kong

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

2

6- n

(ii)

The non-current asset information is based on the
location of the assets and excludes financial asset
at FVTPL and deposit and other receivables.

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of the industrial products and payment is
generally due within 30-90 days from delivery.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with
customers

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or
less. As permitted by HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

9 5 E B ()

FREBEE
2020 2019
—_ il = F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
10,472
1,233
11,705

ERBEEEHRDEREEM
E#E D HAREFARS
MEREERGFARES REAM
J& UK -

(iii) BEFEZEHNER

(iv)

HETXER

BTEARRINIEEREE
B m AR B E 8 R AT ET30
Z90H N EIHR o

TREFFENHRTENEE

FTBEBMAGHNZHBER —F%
AR o 340 & B B 7% 35 R
SIS FF Al W EWE DA
ERERBNENZIXHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A BEHRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ
6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. REDPHER(HE)
(Continued)
(v) Information about major customers (v) EBEEEFMER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of BAREBE BRI ETR10% A £
the total revenue of the Group are as follows: NEPHKZETT:
2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FE& T FE T
Customer A EFEA 12,663 18,950
7. OTHER (LOSSES) GAINS, NET 7. H(EFEB)ERFHE
2020 2019
—E-EHF —F-NF
HK$000 HK$'000
F % T FAT
Rental income He A 901
Fair value (losses) gains on financial BARBEFAEBZDN R
assets at FVTPL, net EEARE(ER)
bR L 110
Exchange (losses) gains, net N (B E) LT 404
Interest income A B U A 214
Government grants (Note) XY 78 Bh (H1 2) =
Gain on early termination of right-of-use 2 Bl 4% |F {F F3 # & &= 1% 25
assets
Others Hi 410
2,039
Note: Bt -
The amount represented the subsidy received from the Hong Kong ZeBEERDNREETEBERNOMEE - HER K
government. There was no unfulfilled condition and other contingency MZzmmEmREXNNKEREMKAS
attached to the receipt of subsidy. g o
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8.

& B % R R M (8)

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS & KA
2020 2019
—E_EfF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T T#& T
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITERMERASTRE X
and overdrafts 1,012
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBRMERX 301
Total finance costs RhE KA 1,313
INCOME TAX EXPENSES FriEBipE
2020 2019
—E_EfF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T TH&E T
Current income tax: BN HEA BT 15 7
Mainland China e RE ] (74)
Deferred tax iR & B 18 2,636
2,562

The Group is subjected to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which subsidiaries of the Group are domiciled and
operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman lIslands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for the
subsidiary of the Group which is qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime effective from the
year of assessment 2019/2020. The first HK$2,000,000
(2019: 2,000,000) of assessable profits of this subsidiary
is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
are taxed at 16.5%.

AEEREAREREERELIRR
ZAN N RN B o ]
ZEERBRMGINBAAER - RIE
RMERELEABRZXHESNARA R
ERCASEHBEABMRAEEER
REBRXBEENEMMABFHR -

EAEFEBRDIAFAREBELED
&5 E R & F I E16.6% (= F
—NF:16.5%) EHBEH HAE
IE’JMTJ%"W%Q:%—)LE/—"

TERHEEREWNFEH M
ﬁ&%IJIETE’JAéST%f*&E‘iBMI\O Z M
B X 7 #2,000,00008 T (= Z — 1
12,000,000 7T) ) JE &R B & A %
8.25% M Fi + M &4 T FE &R Biom F Bl %
16.56% S % °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 9.

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Company did not generate any assessable profits

during the year (2019: Nil).

Pursuant to the PRC Income Tax Law and the respective
regulations, the subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at a rate of

25% on the taxable income.

The income tax for the year can be reconciled from
the loss before tax from continuing operations per
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

Frig %k ()

HRANFEEARNRA L EE ST ME
RBRAN - ML BERF NG
BECTE-NEF -HE)-

RETBEASHREARBEERE  ©
R A2 KB AR A ES
U A B 25% B 48 1 %ﬁfr B e

AEEMERESRABEER REM
PHRAZKERERLEEBRKR

AIEEEERMT:

2020 2019

—E-EF —N&F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FAT

Loss before tax B % Bl & 18 (15,595) (16,657)

Tax calculated at the statutory tax rate  1E A EM R E W5 (2,511) (2,766)

Expenses not deductible for tax TT?D i ok=33! 1,549 919

Income not subject to tax BARBKA (183) (90)

Tax losses not recognised RERRIEBEE 1,145 1,937

Adjustments in respect of current tax of ¥ 4t B # & B # ¢ 18

previous periods 2 B (74)
Write-off of deferred tax assets MENBEFEERD

recognised in previous years EEMRIBEE 2,636

Income tax charge for the year FREHRZWH 2,562
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

/\‘/T\
—EFELH=1—HIEFE
10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 10. FREIE

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging:

2020
—E-EF
HK$000
FET
Auditor’s remuneration % 85 R Bl & 1,774
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEEKA 34,537
Depreciation of property, plant and M- BEREZETE
equipment 1,092
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 1,674
Lease payments not included in the THAEERED
measurement of lease liabilities HER R 127
Loss on disposal of property, plantand %%  BELXEZHE
equipment &5 18 1,049
Employee benefit E 8 1& A 14,475

Impairment loss recognised in respect of i & Uk 32 5 3K 18 K E b f&E
trade and other receivables W IERER 2 R EE 1R

Impairment loss recognised in respect of FL¥ % « = & & # & R
property, plant and equipment Z BB E

Impairment loss recognised in respect of Ft{f FA# & EER
right-of-use assets (B E 18

146

563

902

11. STAFF COSTS BETIRAE
2020
—E-EF
HK$’000
FHET

Employee costs (excluding Directors and BE X A (T B EE K&

chief executive’s remuneration) 1T ER 48 5 & )

Wages and salaries TERF® 12,406
Pension scheme contributions RS &R 1,847
Severance payments BB 222

14,475

FABECHEKTIIER

2019
—NE
HK$'000

TAET

—7

1,819
47416

955
1,684

791

18
17,292

3,103

3,922

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
THET

14,131
3,096
65

17,292
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A BEHRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 12. EE - THABRESZEHM
SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration for the year, BIEE A E™H AR QR GG A
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and BNAFEESERESTHFHOT

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—Z_ZEF+-A=1—HILLFE
Retirement
Basic salaries  Discretionary scheme
Name Director fees and allowances bonus  contributions Total
#E EXZHe EAHEREH MERL BAFEHR b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL TEL THARL THETL
Chief Executive and THER
Executive director: RUTES
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai BEELE
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch ~ BB R &4
(note (a)) (Wi a)
Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex ~ R EH LA
(note (b)) (b))

Non-executive directors: HFHTEE:
Mr. Gao Biao (note (c)) BREEW )

Independent non- BUEHTES:
executive directors:
Mr. Zhang Guofu (note () EBE LE(H 2 ()
Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John 5% 61 % 4
(note (e)) (Wit e))
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming ~ REH L&
Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Amold [ i B % 4

(note (b)) (Bt
Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel RAEE%L4&

(note (b)) (Bt
Total: @t
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z - - ZFTF+ _-_H=+—HIFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. EE  THARRESHMHN(E)

SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-—F-NF+-A=+—HLEE
Retirement
Basic salaries Discretionary scheme
Name Director fees  and allowances bonus contributions Total
"4 B2 EREeRER BB BARGEIMT e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TEL TR THR THR
L' ' ']
Chief Executive and THAR
Executive director: RUTES
Mr. Wong Kwok Wai BEELE = 2,687 - 18 2,705
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Yu Miaogen (note (f) @B REE(H#(1) - 120 = = 120
- 2,807 - 18 2,825
Non-executive directors: EHITEE
Mr. Gao Biao (note (c)) RREEMH #() 240 - - - 240
Mr. Shi Guixiang fnote (g)) ~ RER L& (W i) 80 - - = 80
320 2,807 - 18 3,145
Independent non- BUFHTES:
executive directors:
Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John R BB £
(note (e)) (Hi () 180 - - = 180
Mr. Sung Alfred Lee Ming ~ REH L& 180 - - - 180
Mr. Zhang Guofu (note () ~ EEE % (M i (d) 180 - - = 180
540 - - - 540
Total: @t 860 2,807 - 18 3,685
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INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

12.

B B R R W e (48)

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND
SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Chan Yiu Tung, Enoch was appointed as an executive director
of the Group on 19 February 2020.

(b) Mr. Leung King Yue, Alex was appointed as an executive director
of the Group on 4 June 2020.

(c) Mr. Gao Biao retired as an independent non-executive director of
the Group on 26 June 2020.

(d) Mr. Zhang Guofu retired as an independent non-executive director
of the Group on 26 June 2020.

(e) Dr. Yeung Ngai Man, John resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Group on 1 December 2020.

(f) Mr. Yu Miaogen resigned as an executive director of the Group on
10 May 2019.

(9) Mr. Shi Guixiang resigned as a non-executive director on 10 May
2019.

(h) Mr. Chan Tsun Choi, Arnold and Mr. Chow Chin Hang, Joel were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Group
on 4 June 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company and

subsidiary, if any.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& B % R R M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

mm

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest employees of the Group during the year
included two (2019: one) Directors, details of whose
emoluments are set out in Note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2019:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #H & -
Pension scheme contributions

13.

R R EYREN
R AL

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

TEREHMAL

FAAEEREESHTHALTRE
ME(ZCE—NF:—R)EE HF
MBS R EXXHEI12 FABKBT
—H(CENF WR) R FHNE

BEFARREETHITRAR) N
mr

FEER

2020 2019
= —hE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
1,658

98

1,656

The number of the highest paid employees who are
not the Directors whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ %1,000,000% 7T

HFEBRIATAERNRSHMES (K
WIES) AT

2020 2019
Number of Number of
individuals Individuals
—EB_=F —NEF

A N

4

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
Directors, chief executive and supervisors or any of the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.

REBEEZZ_FTFRZT-—NLEFET+=
A=+—HLEFE AEEHEIN
ERMEFEMNES  THRAEZK
EEdERN At szm s ATUIER
DN BB sk Ik 5| 1% F a0 B2 K & & 2 42 )
BB E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B B R R W e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

14. DIVIDENDS 14.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed

g\

RBE_ZEZ-_ZEF+-_A=1+—HB1
FE TERARREBRRKRRIK
i 3k B R BB - R R S HI R

since the end of the reporting period (2019: Nil). REMBKRBE(ZTE—NF  E)o
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. EREE
Basic losses per share BREXER
2019
—E-NF
Losses B8
Total loss attributable to owners of the & ARIHA A EMLEIE
parent (in HK$'000) BE(THT) (15,595) (19,219)
Shares & (Restated)
(' &)
Weighted average number of ordinary AAGFESREARAEBEN
shares for the purpose of basic loss TR METEHH
per share (note 1) (B at1) IJELENOOE 221,990,000
Basic and diluted loss per share TR EARR B EEE BW)
(HK cents) (note 2) (Ht&t2) (8.66)
Notes: Vs
1) The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose 1) ARAEEARETERBEZEBR

of basic and diluted loss per share has been adjusted for the
effect of rights issue on 12 June 2020 and the share consolidation
on 25 August 2020. The denominator for the purpose of
calculating basic and diluted loss per share in 2019 has been
restated to reflect the effect of the share consolidation and rights
issue during the year ended 31 December 2020. Details of the
share consolidation and rights issue are set out in Note 26.

2) The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 was the same as the basic loss per share as all the
potential ordinary shares were anti-dilutive.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

& B % R R M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Production
machinery
EEHE
HK$'000
TER
31 December 2020 gt 33 gy
=t-H
At 31 December 2019and  R=ZE—-NFF+-A
t 1 January 2020: =t-AKk=-%
—ZF-R-R:
Cost KA 38,792
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z:H T E R E
and impairment (33,548)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,244
At 1 January 2020, net RZBZTF
of accumulated —f—RB B#
depreciation BREGNE
Additions NE
Disposals HeE
Depreciation provided ERFTERE
during the year
Impairment FE
Exchange realignment R
At 31 December 2020, RZZ-ZET_A
net of accumulated =+—-H8 ' E#
depreciation and BREFNE
impairment RAfE
At 31 December 2020: RZZE_ZE+_R
=+-H
Cost P 31,415
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z:H T E R E
and impairment (27,872)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,543

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

16. MEBERZE

Office
equipment
BAERE

HK$'000

TERL

Leasehold
improvement
HENREE

HK$'000
TER

2,161 57

(1,876) (12)

285 45

2,122 69

(1,987) (33)

135 36

Vehicles

A%

HK$'000

TR

2,086

(1,485)

601

1,980

(1,604)

376

Total
@t
HK$"000
TER

43,096

(36,921)

6,175

6,175
243
(1,072)

(1,092)

(563)
399

35,586

(31,496)

4,090
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —FT - ZFTF+ _H=+—HIFFZ

16. M% - BEKRE (&)

142

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
Production Office Leasehold
Machinery equipment improvement Vehicles Total
EERER BAZERE HENERE HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEL TET TET

31 December 2019 ZE-NE+ZA
=+-H
At 31 December 2018and  R=Z—\E+= A
t 1 January 2019; =+-Ak
RZB-NF
—-A-H
Cost X R 39,389 2,036 41 2,174 43,640
Accumulated depreciation ~ Eit T & R E
and impairment (30,171) (1,443) (10) (1,331) (32,955)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,218 593 31 843 10,685
t 1 January 2019, net —E-NE
of accumulated —A—R B
depreciation BREIE 9,218 593 31 843 10,685
Additions NE 269 169 57 60 555
Disposals e - - (21) (1) (32)
Depreciation provided FRFTERE
during the year (606) (123) (22) (204) (955)
Impairment B{E (3,501) (345) = (76) (3,922)
Exchange realignment T (136) (9) = (1) (156)
At 31 December 2019, RZE-N&E+=A
net of accumulated =7—H"
depreciation and BABRZRGTE
impairment R fE 5,244 285 45 601 6,175
At 31 December 2019; “E-NETZA
=t+-H
Cost X R 38,792 2,161 57 2,086 43,09
Accumulated depreciation ~ Eit T & R E
and impairment (33,548) (1,876) (12) (1,485) (36,921)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,244 285 45 601 6,175
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

A M ERR W & (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Production machinery 10% to 20%

Office equipment 20% to 30%

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Vehicles 20% to 30%

During the year, the carrying amounts of certain property,
plant and equipment have been written down by
HK$563,000 (2019: HK$3,922,000) to their recoverable
amounts.

16. % - BMERRE (&)

TENERBEDE BEEREZ
Lt ERFH  UWERKRESEKAE
MHEERBKEEFE -RUERABZ
EE2FMEME:

A FE M B3 10% £20%

WRERME 20% £30%

HEYEEE EHEFHRK
20% H W & B
mE

B 20% £30%

FR HATYE BEERRENERET
B B M5 563,0008 L (ZFE— N F:
3,922,000 c) E E Bl & 58 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4T A

INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

16.

B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W¥ - HWENRE (E)
(Continued)
Impairment assessment B R
Following a review of the business, which takes into RETEBR(BPEEELH =
account the deteriorating outlook for the textile industry TEHELANAIEEAEBRNRREE
and the Group's future business plan, management FEN% EEEBCEHTEMEY
has reassessed the carrying values for all the property, ¥ BEREZEAKERESE
plant and equipment and ROU assets (Note 17) as FIR_E_EF+_A=+—"BH
at 31 December 2020. An impairment provision of BRME (A - B £ 151,465,000 L(=ZF
HK$1,465,000 (2019:HK$3,922,00) has been recorded — L% 3,922,000 Jr) ik (B # &
to reduce the carrying value of the Group’s non-financial NS l?F%%ﬁﬁfEEﬁﬁﬁﬁZQiﬁ
assets to their estimated recoverable value, which is the HEtAE £ %E - DA R ER L EK
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and VIU. 7 B2 5 f’ifﬁfﬁ%Z@%% o
2020 2019
—ECEH —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&E T
CGUT1 (note) WEEEEM(HZE) 2,399
CGU2 (note) BeEEEM2(H:7) 1,523
3,922
Less: provision for right-of-use assets WAL ERE -
Provision for property, plant and Y- BEREZERE
equipment 3,922
Note: &t -

CGU1 and CGU2 represent the Group’s product line for polyester threads
and nylon threads. The recoverable amount of CGU was determined
at VIU and fair value less costs of disposal as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 respectively. VIU and fair value less costs of disposal are
categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy and are measured
based on the independent valuer and latest available market data
sourced from an independent second-hand machinery and equipment
agent as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The recoverable amount of polyester threads and nylon threads product
line as at 31 December 2020 was determined based on VIU calculation
and based on certain key assumptions. VIU calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by the management of
the Group covering a five-year period, which is taking into account the
useful lives of plant and machinery. The discount rate used for the value
in use calculations is at 11.26%. Cash flow beyond the five year period
were extrapolated using a 3% steady growth rate. This growth rate was
based on the relevant growth forecasts and does not exceed the average
long term growth rate for the relevant industry.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/—J_\

& B % R R M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

17.

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥k - BMERRE (K)
(Continued)
Impairment assessment (Continued) WAERE 4 (58)
Note: (Continued) HiaE: (&)
The recoverable amount of CGU1 and CGU2 are HK$5,024,000 R-FE_FF+-A=+—F HASELEENI
(2019:HK$8,061,000) and HK$2,829,000(2019: HK$3,644,000) KRB & EESM 20 RO £ 85 5 55,024,000
respectively as at 31 December 2020. ;%ﬁ(ig JL4F + 8,061,000/ 7T) 2,829,000
BT (ZZT — 4 3,644,000 7T) °
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. ERAEEE
Buildings
BF
2020 Total 2019 Total
—E_EF —NF
st FERy
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T F& T
As at 1 January 2019 T—-—n&F—H—H 5,992
Additions //J\E 1,330
Disposals & -
Depreciation charges e (1,684)
Exchange realignment e W 32 (108)
Impairment loss (Note 16) B BB (M E16) =
As at 31 December Rt+t—A=+—H 5,530
Expense relating to short-term leases R HEENRAX 791
Total cash outflow for leases HERS KL B 2,776
Additions to right-of-use assets FTRAEEERE 1,330

The Group leases various buildings and other equipment
used in its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term of two to four and a half years, with
extension and termination options. Other equipment
generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/or
is individually of low value. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

AEEHEFTEFREMR
REZE -

5 R
HEAHNEHERmFEEN

FENEANBEEHRIIL BE
B MK EEE - EMRED

MB-RAUATZEAKNAT R/ &K
@5 RIEEE - HE &R Ty E @ 5
HEEER  BRETRGERRESE -
R EE M H R RE S AT E A
EER AEEEBAANERL
BEAMM ARG ATHHE -
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Zr—‘ﬂ

INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

A % R R T aE ()

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL:

Unlisted equity investment,
at fair value (note a)

Lif

(note b)

@ Y (B ita)
HIRE (A
( i #Eb)

e insurance policy, at fair value

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

18. RAAREBEFARENEHEE

BAREFARGED

fE)

FEMBEARE(FE AR

Notes:

146 SsHENY

The unlisted equity investment represented the Group's equity
investment in a private entity established in Australia. As at 31
December 2020, the fair value of the investment is reference to
the valuation conducted by an independent qualified professional
valuer based on Level 3 hierarchy by using market approach.

In the opinion of the Directors, the investment would not be
disposed within the next 12 months and was therefore classified
as a non-current asset.

On 25 January 2016, the Group entered into a life insurance policy
with an insurance company to insure an executive director. Under
the policy, the Group is the beneficiary and the policy holder. The
Group paid upfront premiums for the policy and may surrender
the policy any time by making a written request and receive
cash based on the surrender value of the policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is calculated by the insurer. In the opinion of
the Directors, the surrender value of the policy provided by the
insurance company is the best approximation of its fair value,
which is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The
life insurance policy was mandatorily classified as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows are
not solely payments of principal and interest.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's life insurance policy was
pledged as security for bank facilities granted to the Group and
the pledge has been fully released during the year ended 31
December 2020. Further details are contained in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(a)

2020 2019

—E-EE ZE-NF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT THET

4,742

4,742
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E_ZTHES+-_A=+—H FHEREZ
RABEBDHNERAAELLZE -RBIA
EREXGEMNRBEE=REREMBD
BEE -

EERA AKEERRNR2EAATE H
E AUBEHBREAFRIEE -

RZE—R"F—A=Z+HA AEEHHRA
—HRBAFITISRRE  B—EH
TEERR BEBERE AEEARH

ARREFBA - AKBEERNYRE -
MR EBRREMARERER "R
BREXRBEBAHNRRSH(BE AR

AFBE)EBRAE - EFRA RBRA
ARENRERREELEALERE -

VHERRABEERE=HR - ZBRRE
i“‘?@%‘J“"‘Eﬁﬁﬂxuﬁﬁ)\ﬁmmimﬂ
ﬁﬁzliﬁ&ﬂ%f’

R-E-—AF+-_A=+—B ~&£H
MERRECEBELRAEBEERRIT
BRENER ERRBEE-_T-_TF+=
A=+—RALFELGREBEEMER - &
— S HBHR G AN B RERM 23 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

18.

19.

& B % R R M (8)

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group's life insurance
policy would not be surrendered within the next 12
months and was therefore classified as a non-current
asset.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials JR A
Work in progress £ 2
Finished goods B PK mm

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

18. &

AREFAEBZNEREE

(&)

EEZRR AEEARART-_EART
SERRSBRERE AUBEFTER

ERBEE o
19. &8
2020 2019
= AE —T 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FiE T
4,378
1,973
5,031
11,382
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A BEHRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ
20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EWXRSFIER HEWRK
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂE —j'LE'E
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
i FE& T F& T
Trade receivables FE WX 5 R IE 10,367 10,609
Less: Allowance for credit B IEEEEEE
losses (333) (205)
(a) (d) 10,034 10,404
Other prepayments H th T8 4 5K 18 2,181 4,070
Loans to a vendor m fHE R B K (b) 3,542 3,538
Deposits and other receivables & & & H fib & Ug zx 18 11,959 2,663
17,682 10,272
Less: Allowance for credit W EEEEEE
losses (3,561) (3,543)
14,121 6,729
Classified as: DERE:
Non-current assets EREBEE 1,908
Current assets mENEE 4,821
6,729
Total trade and other JE W R 5 FIE K H b B Uk
receivables FRIE AR 24,155 17133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

NF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

==

e B HRERWE (B

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

a)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally from one to three months.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to
minimise the credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. The Group had significant concentrations
of credit risk as 26% (2019: 25%) of the trade receivables were
derived from one (2019: one) customer as at 31 December
2020. The trade receivables from such customer were within
the credit period. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance of
ECL as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month —f@A
1 to 2 months —ZEZmfEA
2 to 3 months ME=@A
Over 3 months BB=@A

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

20. EWRZF

(&)
5

a)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

8 8 75 KR B
—==A

Neither past due nor impaired
1 to 3 months

RIE K E Ath FE W K TE

AEEREFHARGEREEERNEE °
EEHRYRE=EA -BEEFA
FE ER - NEB K E R ERK
HERFBRBER  UREREEERR -
EREEETHEROHESR RN _F
—TF+=-A=+—8  AR26% (=%
fﬂi 25%) MR RS HREBERE — &

T-NE:—R)EEF RAEEH
EAGESEFER - REZBTFPHEK
REFBENMEEESHAN - NEBIL &R
FE UL 22 5 51 I8 4 4 B B E T R @ sk B
s AIRFIE e - BIR R 5 KIB A T &

Bl e

RBERRERERAH R E R R
BZERZXSFRBAECHNGBERMEES
BEEBE NERRITOT :

2020
E_FF
HK$ 000

FTERT

2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
FH T

6,842
2,861
545
156

10,404

JEME B X RR AREZERZSHA
ZREDITMT

2020 2019
—E-SE —NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T#ET FHE T
9,177

1,227

10,404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B B R R W e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
b) Loans to a vendor bear interest at rates 5.00% (2019:4.66% to

5.00%) per annum, secured by certain machineries of the vendor
and repayable in two to three years with demand clause.

c) Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 29.
d) As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables amounting to

approximately HK$3,622,000 had been pledged as security for
the Group's banking facilities (Note 23)

21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following

currencies:
Denominated in - RMB ARG E
Denominated in — HKD LA TTEHE

20. B R ZFIAR Eith BUKIA

21.

(&)
5

b)

d)

(%)

M ERERIESF500% (=T — AN
F:4.66% £5.00%) B A E5 B - HH
EEE THRERER  THERERK
FRME=ZFEANEE -

J& s 32 5 3R TA K E 8 UK R IR B R (B RT
BN 529 -

RZE-NF+_A=+—H BKX
5 P IE 493,622,000 T B & # 1E R &K
SERTRENERGE23) -

BERBRITHEER

BRESRBITERTIDUANATER

+ L -
IZD#'

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ

22. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. ENXENIE - Hitt R EHEN

Mg
2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHE T
Trade payables ERAR S KIE
— from third parties (note a) — REF=ZHHHE
(Kt 7Fa) 5,199

Other payables and accruals Hith & FEGHERRIE

Contract liabilities (note b) BHEaE W ED) 57

Other payables and accruals HEHMmENREREGTER 4,639

Total other payables and accruals Ht Rk EGTENRIBEEAE 4,696

The other payables and accruals are unsecured, interest- HEARBREFERAEEMR -

free and repayable on an average term of three months. TErE - FHERBA=@EA -

a) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at a) MEMEBR BENIRZHE
the end of each reporting period, based on the ERRSBHBERERTET :
transaction date, is as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EfF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month ~E—1EA 1,602
1 to 2 months —ZEZWMHEA 1,240
2 to 3 months Wz =18 A 791
Over 3 months B im = & A 1,566
5,199

The credit period in purchase of goods is generally REEBR EERBE AR 2

from one to three months. =M@A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4T A
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B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

22. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

152

b)

As at 1 January 2019, contract liabilities amounted
to approximately HK$187,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
approximately of HK$57,000 (2019: approximately
HK$187,000) of revenue recognised related to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances
received to deliver sewing threads and garment
accessories. The decrease in contract liabilities
during the year was mainly due to the decrease in
short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of sewing threads and garment
accessories at the end of the year.

23. BANK BORROWINGS

22.

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

BAR SRR - Htak Bt B
FE (&)
by R-TE-AF—H—HB &H8&

& #9/5187,0007 JT °

REBE_ZT_TF+_A=+—
BIEFE 4570008 (==
— L5 : 49187,000% 1) HE R £
HAEBSNBERBHKA -
AHEBERERNERIRR
SR P ER R R HR B R -
REANEGEHNEERITIEES
HRFRBREERADE R RE
FHRWREFHNE SRR D
FIT 2~

23. RITER

Bank loans, secured RITER — BEA
Overdrafts iﬁi
Borrowings are denominated in: BRAATE®BE:
HK$ & TT
United States Dollar ("US$") Eax(ERx])

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

2020 2019
—2-2F —NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
15,033

4,934

19,967

2020 2019
—B-%F —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
11,934

8,033

19,967



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

23.

& B %5 R M A ()

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

All the interest-bearing bank borrowings were repayable
on demand as at 31 December 2019 and all the interest
bearing bank borrowings had been fully settled during
the year ended at 31 December 2020.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 ranged

between 4.2% to 6.2% per annum.

As at the end of reporting period, the summary of assets
pledged and guaranteed borrowings are as follows:

The bank borrowings are secured by:

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

23. RITER(E)

BEFRRITERRZZE-—NF+=
A=+t —BREXREREMEAFTR
RITERERBE_T_TF+_A
T+ —HALFEBHLEES -

RZZE-hF+ZA=+—H K&
ERRTEEZERFNENTF4.2%
£6.2% °

RBERR ARARNEREER
ERERBRDAT

RITERATFIEB FERE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T F& T
Financial assets at FVTPL WAREBEFABZHNEF
BE 4,742
Trade receivables JEUR R 5 5 IE 3,622
8,364

HK Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause issued by
the HKICPA requires that a loan which includes a clause
that gives the lender the unconditional right to call in
the loan at any time (“repayment on demand clause”)
shall be classified in total by the borrower as current in
the statement of financial position. Interest-bearing bank
borrowings of the Group in the amount of HK$19,967,000
as at 31 December 2019 include a repayment on demand
clause under the relevant loan agreements, among
which balances amounting to HK$2,860,000 that are
repayable after one year from 31 December 2019 have
been classified as current liabilities. For the purpose
of the above analysis, such loans are included within
current secured bank borrowings and analysed into bank
borrowings repayable on demand.

FB

&6 2
B RE 2 2
AREREBEGRZEHERZH

BRE BERDEARBBRIRA
HEERTERT A EEKTER

CEMNBERERESD
H— BERTHER

ZREEEFRNER(REREERK
RODZERBAESEANE - R
E-—hE+-A=+—B REEH
BEXa REREREEERITD
7N @ B R 1T 16 5% 419,967,000/
T HEAR_ZE—AFE+_A=+—
BBt —F 1% EEE 2 #£22,860,000
/’%TEEA*EEML@JQTE"TJ‘J:E[

MimE - ZEERETAREHAE KM
WRITER oW AEEBEEKRER

IR 1T AR

HEZERARAT /2020F 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ
23. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 23. RITER(E)
All the banking facilities have been cancelled by the bank REBE-_Z_THF+_A=1+—H1
and the Group had fully settled all the bank borrowings FE - ROTEBEMABRITRE B
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The bank ZK%@E’E\ BEMBRTER - R
has discharged all the pledged assets of the Group and ZEFTF+A=+—8H" RITE
no assets of the Group were pledged to bank as at 31 R AEENFBEEREE BAKE
December 2020. BYWEEMEELR TIRT ©
24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24, HEEE
Lease liabilities payable: EAEEAE:
2020 2019
—E-EfF ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER F&E T
Within one year —F R 2,155
Within a period of more than one year SR —FENZAME
but not exceeding two years B fE A 1,263
Within a period of more than two years ZRMFETZR A
but not exceeding five years FHIREA 2,606
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 6,024
Less: Amount due for settlement with & : W121@ A A B Hi 45 &
12 months shown under current B FRIE - Bl R E
liabilities BB 2,155
Amount due for settlement after 1218 A 1% B B3 & - A9 3K
12 months shown under non-current H - ARFERBERG
liabilities 3,869
The incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities $E B E BB RS LR F169% & R
recognised under HKFRS 16 ranged from 4.75% to RHEEERBANIZEGRTEF
8.80% per annum (2019: 4.75% per annum). 1 BN F4.75% £8.80% (—ZF — h

F:BFFLTE%) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ
24. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 24. HEAE (&)
Lease liabilities payable: (Continued) ERHEEEE: (&)
Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies AEBNUEBEEEBNNEER
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group NN EESGENHAESE K WM
entities are set out below: N
RMB
AR
HK$'000
FHE T
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZFEF+=—HA=+—H 3,683
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 4,145
The Group as a lessor AEBEEREHEA
The Group subleases certain building in the PRC AEBERBELEHEEZHERPEAD
under an operating lease arrangement, of which the HAETEF EfgTHHBAREE=Z=
remaining lease term is three and a half years from 1 TFE-—H—HBRBHA=FZTMEAH -
January 2020. The terms of the lease generally require ERR—REKKBFPREERHNIA
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide TmASZNEREZe YR EHE S
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then ABRTREEGE AEERFRAER
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised RS W A A916,0008 T (ZF— AN
by the Group during the year was HK$916,000 (2019: % :901,00087) r HFBHRES
HK$901,000), details of which are included in Note 7 to MBHmRRMET -
the consolidated financial statements.
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments RZEZTF+A=+—H &&
receivable by the Group in future periods under operating ERARPERELEREREA
lease with its tenant are as follows: PRKHARIERBEEREBHOT
2020 2019
—E-EF ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHE T
Within one year —F RN 910
Within a period of more than one year ZHR—FENZRAMFH
but not exceeding two years A 932
Within a period of more than two years % R F BT % R 1 F 5
but not exceeding five years A 1,433
3,275

mEZRERAR /202065 15D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

For the purpose of presentation in consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

25 EEHREEE

EJL%?/\WF%?REEE’J@@&W? =

EERBEERABELERIE
ﬁﬁ AT ARMBHREMSELER
TEAE R E) DT

2020 2019
—E-EF —NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets: BEELEHEBEEE:
Balance at beginning of year F Y4 & 2,648
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRHMKRETNEERE
during the year: (Note 10) (Hta10)
Accrued salary and welfare expense EitEse kEANHAX (26)
Tax loss available for offsetting against 7] it K #5 7k 5 fig 22 71
future taxable profits & K 2 7 I8 B 48 (1,915)
Deferred rental expense FEEMEERZ (335)
Impairment of financial assets TREERE (140)
Impairment of non-financial assets FemEERE (220)
(2,636)
Exchange differences E X =5 (12)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$3,925,000 (2019: HK$3,181,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$21,017,000 (2019: HK$16,169,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect
of these tax losses due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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& B % R R M (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. IR
Number of Number of
shares shares Amount
ROYE % & E 8
HK$0.01 each  HK$0.05 each HK$'000
BREE BREAE
0.0 T 0.05% 7T FET
Ordinary shares EER
Authorised: 57*& E:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December T-NE—A—B -ZE—n%
2019 and 1 January 2020 + A=+- H&_7_§
—H—H 5,000,000,000 - 50,000
Share consolidation (note (b)) Rkt & OF (4 b)) (5,000,000,000)  1,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2020 R=2-%F+-A=t+—H
Issued and fully paid: ERIRBR:
At 1 January 2019, 31 December R-Z—AF—HF—H —T-N%F
2019 and 1 January 2020 +ZA=+— El)ifo?ﬁ
—HR—H 800,000,000 - 8,000
Issue of new shares by way of BRERBITIRMG (K i26)
rights issue (note (a)) 400,000,000 - 4,000

B An & Bt (H (b))

Share consolidation (note (b))

At 31 December 2020

Notes:

=

(1,200,000,000)

I
<

240,000,000 =

R-2-B%+-A=t+-H 240,000,000 12,000
On 12 June 2020, the Company completed a rights issue and (a) N—-= :gg/‘\ B+—-—H ADXF XK
issued 400,000,000 new shares with par value HK$0.01 each at H A% - 347400, 000 0000% &= B% T {50.01
a subscription price of HK$0.043 per rights share on the basis of EILHNHBG REEESRERE
one rights share for every two existing shares held (the “Rights 50.0435% ¢ » & 2%'_ AEEARBEAS
Issue”), and the net proceeds of the Rights Issue, after deducting B e — RS LR AR 5 (TR AR ) » L p%
the related expenses, were approximately HK$14.6 million, which NBREEERANFTERBESEN A
were mainly used for the Group’s working capital and business 14,600,000 7T TEAR SN AEH
development. Detailed terms of the Rights Issue and its results BBELREBRE - FEHB A
were set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 May 2020 EHERHEEESRHEARAQTBE A —
(the "Rights Issue Prospectus”) and the announcement dated E-—TERA-_tHHEHBSRE(HR
11 June 2020 respectively. ER ) RAEAE—_TE-—_ZTE~A+—H
Z/\d: o
(b) Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (b) BEARAAR-_E-_ZTENA-_+—8H

which was held on 21 August 2020 and the resolutions of the
share consolidation of the Company involving consolidation of the
number of shares on the basis that every five issued and unissued
shares of HK$0.01 each be consolidated into one consolidated
share of HK$0.05 each were approved, with effect from 25
August 2020.

BOMNBEREIRE  BUARAEZESE
ERSREECOETHNERITRARE
TRNEHA-—REREECETE
HROZBENEHEREKE B-F
“EFENRAZ+THARAEXK

HEZERARAT /2020F 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

27.

& B %5 R MY A ()

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s Directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group and the Company’s shareholders
in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme became
effective on 24 November 2017 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time unless
the Company obtains approval from its shareholders in
general meeting and/or other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules and must not exceed 30% of
the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 7 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option shall be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and in any event, such period shall
not be longer than 10 years from the date upon which
any particular option is granted in accordance with the
Scheme.
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27.
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BRAERTE

ARBRBEBRES S (T8 A
ARAREXEBERRIELERNS
ER2EERHABREE - 518
ZRER2EERRARAES(E
%ﬁj#ﬁﬁ§$)$%EEME

C R ARE B RS G R R
Eﬁ AEBEFPRARBRART
MEARMBE - FER_FT—tF
T—AZTHBRERN  BRIERITEH

B85 BAIGFEIK BEZ AR T+ 5
NIA R B K °
BRIFARBABRAS FESBSHRK

Rt RSB TIR B LT AET
AR E M Z sk B AR A RE
FEEZESHMARITEBRESE
N EE T FE (5 AR A B
MEZETRMHDZ210% B RAEBAET
REZEITKRMRE 230% ° £ EM[
T EABEA - RERZTEFA
AERSHEERENERENY T
BTN ER=aRMEE  HAUAARREE
MEEREZEITRMOT1% BR - HB
e ol PR R A B A A B %
BAERSRERKRE RN B FE -

ERHCERETRIEZAHE
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EMBRhcHEBREETSE2ENE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ

27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The subscription price shall be determined solely by the
Directors, but may not be less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the option, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares
of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the option; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share on the date of offer.

The Company, by resolution in a general meeting or
the Directors may at any time terminate the operation
of the Scheme and in such event no further options of
the Scheme will be offered but those options granted
prior to such termination shall continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the previous provisions of
the Scheme.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of
the Scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group also monitors the current and expected
liquidity requirements regularly to ensure that sufficient
working capital and adequate committed lines of funding
are maintained to meet its liquidity requirements. Upon
the discovery of any default, the Group would negotiate
immediately with the relevant lenders for proper
arrangement in order to maintain sufficient working
capital. Upon the expectation of any cash insufficiency,
the Company would seek new source of funding so as to
maintain sufficient working capital. The capital structure
of the Group consists of net debts (which include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings), net of bank balances and cash and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves. Details of which are
disclosed in respective notes.

27.

28.

BBRERTE(A)

REBEEEAREST2RET ETF
BERTIESE: (VAR ROV E
HEREAM(ARLERA)EB AR
BHBERABIETE: (RO
ERRLBRERHMAELERE
BXAEBERERMHRFHRTE:
Kl R LR ER R 2 HE -

ARBERRARGLBERBZRRX
EFTHERERLEFENER ME
EEATASERLFE ZEME
Bt EZERURLERNRHL 2B
BERBFE ZEMEXEERX
RATATAE o

BERMTEE BERLETABER
1E -

EXEmEE

AEEERETAAABRRAEE
CEBEAHELE LEBEL
EHRERERARIERRAD
% -

AEENERBARERARBDES
FE UBRESAWNEEERS
REHANAREERE  UEMH
MBESHE RERTAENR -
AEBETHNEBEERAEDET
BETH BEEBENZIEESR
T -REHETMEZIRER AT
RELFTRERR N@#EFKEHZ
LEEL - AKRENEARBEER
EBFR(BRENRXZHE - Hit
BNREREFER BHERER
RITEF)  ENBRTERRES
UEARBHEEAEERZ(BEE
BIBRARFER)  ARAABHRER
HEMFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 28.

The Directors review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on the recommendations of the Directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as issue of new debt
or redemption of the existing debts.

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29.

(a) Categories of Financial Instruments

AR EE ()

EEZTHRTEARE - ERER
— WO EFHEREARARE
BRHEAEBNRER REEFZ
EE ASRERAEABBRTHRN
NEZTHEBRBLREEL S
AR FERBREBERER -

TRIA

(a) ERMTEEHR

2020 2019
HK$ 000 HK$'000
F& T THE T
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAREFABENS
mlEE
Unlisted equity investment #J:FﬁZHﬁZMQﬁ
Life insurance =B 4,742
4,742
Financial assets at RBHEAATENSH
amortised cost: EE:
Trade receivables FE U R 5 5K IE 10,034 10,404
Deposit and other receivables e & HE g IE 11,940 2,659
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEEY 11,918 34,531
33,892 47594
Financial liabilities at BREBHEAATENSH
amortised cost: aE:
Trade payables FET R 5 5 I8 5,199
Other payables and accruals H e RIE K&
fE 5t & A 4,582
Bank borrowings AT IE R 19,967
Lease liabilities HEBE 6,024
35,772
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

& B %5 R M A ()

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at FVTPL, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other payables and accruals, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i) Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency
exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units and
financial assets in currencies other than the
units’ functional currencies. The Company’s
exposure to currency risk is through certain
transactions that are denominated in AUD and
RMB. As the financial assets denominated in
AUD are insignificant, the exposure to foreign
currency risk is considered minimal.

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. €T HE(&)

(b)

MR EEEERBER

AEBZITZERTABER
AREFAERZZEREE
J& W 32 55 5RO K B At FE W BROA
RehkReFEBEY BB
RENMEMENRENREE
A -HERERRTEE
FeRMTAFEREBEONE
ﬁ%°ﬁuﬁiﬂlﬂﬁﬁm

° #%

»A&}Emiﬁﬂﬁ i%mﬂ PR
ﬂ%@ﬁ SRS ﬁ@ﬁ

%@ﬁoTKﬁﬂmﬂ%ﬁ%
FRBRMOBR - -EERENER
WEEEBER  NEREE
ERBETHEERE

(i) E¥ERE

AEEAZXZHEEER
e ZSREBRREEEE
MAEBENREREERD
EEENEBETEERRMN
He AEEHERNERR
BREREB®BETURITK
ARBHENRS - AR
NBETFHEZEREER
A B & - B e B S B
2 B B e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change by
5% in the HK$ exchange rate against RMB,
with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s loss before tax due to changes in
the translated values of monetary assets and
liabilities.

If HK$ strengthens against RMB
If HK$ weakens against RMB

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. €@ ITE(E)

(b)

AT AREFE
fWAETEARBEZE

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate bank borrowings and bank balances. The
Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the manager
monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating interest
rate.
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M EREEEERBER)

(i)

(ii)

ERER (R

TRERERGLEH
BRETEZERT B
T AR [ERA O
B % B5% 2 A % [ 1 B
MEBBASEEER
afEREEELEHH )
Z DT o

2020 2019
sl T F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
1,496
(1,496)

MEE R
ZA LIy ol

EﬁﬁﬁﬁZ@bﬁﬂ$
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AR RENERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the
sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in
interest rate of 100 basis points, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’'s loss
before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings).

If interest rates decrease by 100 fit & F & T FE1001E

basis points 2

If interest rates increase by 100 fisi & 7 %= _E A 1001

basis points BB

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. €T HE(&)

(b) B R EEERRBUR (&)

(ii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in unquoted equity
securities measured at FVTPL. Price risk was
monitored by the management of the Group
who will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

M= (&)

TRERENA E 85
ﬁﬁHTmZFﬁT,ﬂ

4 8 T 4 # $10018 &
%E$E@@mm%%@,
BEFEESERNTE) 2
RBA o

2020 2019

—BCRF —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT THET

200

(200)

(iii) HEHERR

rAEBERREZRAFE
AABRAEZERER
RE H AR RAEBERER
e BRERBEAEEE
BEEER UYKRNERE
R EEE I AREAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF#& R EEEZE R BUER ()
policies (Continued)

(ivi FERRRBEFMGE

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group's
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to
the Group. The Group's credit risk exposures
are primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

The carrying amounts of financial assets
at amortised cost stated in Note 29(a)
represented the Group’'s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risk
associated with its financial assets.

Trade receivables

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’'s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF%& R E EEZE R BUR ()
policies (Continued)

(iv) 1= & & B & 8 57 14 (&)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC,
which accounted for 68% (2019: 66%) of the
total trade receivables as at 31 December
2020. The Group has concentration of credit
risk as 26% (2019: 25%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the financial department has been delegated
by the management of the Group to be
responsible for the determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures and the review of the recoverable
amount of each material individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate provision for impairment losses is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition,
the Group continuously monitors its trade
receivable balances so as to ensure that the
Group will not be subject to material bad
debt risk. Since the Group only trades with
third parties recognised to be creditworthy,
management considers that the credit risk in
respect of the Group's customers is limited.
Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade receivables are disclosed in Note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment for trade receivables
under ECL model. Impairment of HK$333,000
(2019: HK$205,000) is recognised during the
year. Details of the quantitative disclosures are
set out below in this note.

BEURXZ5E (&)

AEB 2 EERRIZME
UEEZEFRRFAE K
—E-FEF+_A=1+—

BIEREW XS RIERALRE 2
68% (ZZT—N5F :66%) °

AEENEERREFR
$%l%%%x%%ﬁ%
B 426% (ZF — L&
25%)IERAEB H AR
FRZXE - AR REE
BERR AEEEREER
%M%%Eﬁﬁizﬁ@
B oEFEEMRHEME R

HE YAEERSHREH
REHSEANEANEBD
AT E & FE o RER AT
B & BT IR T 2R (E S
BEEE - LI AEEF
BECIE RN R B RIB A

REAEEFEESEEA
SRR - BN AEEE

AmTﬁEmmm%—H
ETRG BEERAR
AEEBREFEHANEER
SER - BFHEAEERE
W&% KBl 2 EEE
BHEELLEREREEY
IR R KT 208 FE o

A NEE IR ETE B E
BEEBEREAGEABMBLE
KRS RIEE TR
B FRNEERRES
333,000 L (ZE— 4 :
205,000 7T) - B B Z T
EFENFBIRTX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. R T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF#& R EEEZE R BUER ()
policies (Continued)

(iv) 1= & & B & m 8 57 14 (&)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The
Group assessed 12m ECL for cash and cash
equivalents by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default
of the respective credit rating grades published
by external credit rating agencies. Based on
the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank
balances is considered to be insignificant.

Deposit and other receivables

Where applicable, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default and
expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference
to the historical loss record of the Group. The
loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. In calculating the
expected credit loss rate, the Group considers
the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data. For the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group have assessed and concluded that the
risk of default rate for the other instruments
are steadily based on the Group assessment
of the financial health of the counterparties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. TR T A (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF%& R E EEZE R BUR ()

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment (iv)] EERERBETEE)
(Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading NEE A E E R BT
assessment comprises the following BEGHBEATER
categories:
Internal credit Trade Other financial
rating Description receivables assets
AMEEFTR BoR WX 5 KA Htem&EE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - 12m ECL
default and does not have any not credit-
past-due amounts impaired
1K [ B2 REBFREHRRE CLEERFN 2HBEHEEES 2EABHREE
BHeELHEHNEEER BE—8&EFE & 18
—EEERE B AE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
dates but usually settle in full not credit-
impaired
BRuE BEHABERINBEEREER 2HEHEEES 2@BABHEE
BEXEEE BE—8&EFE & 18
B AE
Doubtful There have been significant Lifetime ECL - Lifetime ECL - not
increases in credit risk since not credit- credit-impaired
initial recognition through impaired

information developed internally
or external resources

] 5E 48 REANBASEMINBLER ZHEHEEES 2HBRHACESDS
=B = B )16 # 2 A R R B—-8EFE B—-8EFEH
Z 180 B =

RERRERAR /20205% 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RERNEE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. TR T A (%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF#& R EEEZE R BUER ()

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment (iv)] EERRERBETEE)
(Continued)

Internal credit Trade Other financial
rating Description receivables assets
ABEETR B B RS ME Hith2mEE
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL -
asset is credit-impaired — credit- credit-impaired
impaired
& A ERBRBEREELHREERE THEMEEE 2HEHEES
B—EE B—fFE
B B
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is Amount is written
the debtor is in severe financial written off off

difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
T 88 ERBEBTEBARARENSE MiEeHE s & 8
N2 - BARE B &E K E R
mE R A e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk
exposures of the Group's financial assets,

which are subject to ECL assessment.

External

credit

Note rating

HBEE

Wit FR

Financial assets at amortised costs

RBERAGTENSREE

Bank balances 21

RITH

Deposits and other 20
receivables

ReRAMERERE 20

Trade receivables 20
EURHHE 20

AA+

N/A

@R

N/A

@R

Internal
credit
rating
AHEE
Tk

N/A
&R

(Note 1)

(B ET)

(Note 2)

(Bt 5E2)

29. €T HE(&)

(b) Bris R EEERRBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B &6 & 57 14 (&)

TRFRAEEAETE
%Ef%%ﬁﬁmiﬂﬁ

EffER
2020
g a3 3
Gross
12m or lifetime carrying
ECL amount
12BEARZHES

FEER M 48 1E
HK$'000
TER

12m ECL
NERBHEER
BB

12m ECL

REARBEER
B

Lifetime ECL
(Provision
matrix)

2HEREEEE
(BEERE)

2019
—E-NF
Gross
carrying
amount

REAE
HK$'000
TAT

34,531

6,202

10,609

HEZERARAT /2020F 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4r A

INAAS

B 75 ¥R & MY ot (48

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Notes:

(1) The credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be low risk when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be
doubtful.

(2) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL.

As part of the Group's credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ aging to assess
the impairment for its customers in relation
to its operation because these customers
consist of a large number of small customers
with common risk characteristics that are
representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides
information about the exposure to credit risk
for trade receivables which are assessed on
a collective basis by using provision matrix
within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

SHEN YOU HOLDINGS LIMITED / 2020 ANNUAL REPORT
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29. @M ITE(&)

(b)

Mg EREZEEERBEE)

(iv) 1= & & B & m 8 57 14 (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

& B % R R M (8)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the
credit risk exposure on the Group’s trade
receivables using a provision matrix:

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. €T HE(&)

(b) B R EEERRBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B & Rl 8 &7F & ()

TREIIAKEEEREE
REFENEKRRSHRA
MIEERRER:

2020 2019
- 32 ZE-NE
Average Trade Average Trade
loss rate receivables ECL loss rate  receivables ECL
Ehxa EEEE EYRS BEEE
THERE g [l TYERE A 3=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TEn TEx
Current il 0.9% 10,195 9%
Past due il
— Within 3 months — AR 10.0% 259 26
— 310 6 months — =2, A —* 7 =
— 60 9 months —~ENERA 90.2% - -
— 910 12 months —NE+ZfiA 99.8% 84 83
Subtotal NG - 10,609 205

* Less than 0.1%

The estimated loss rates are estimated based
on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

* K 720.1%

CEEEENE SN 9N
T 50 4 1 0 BB R 15 0 I
EROEMHBE BB
PR B R
7 BV AR 18 2 71 e M
IEH B R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B B R R W e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables shows the movement
in lifetime ECL that has been recognised for
trade receivables under simplified approach:

TR T A (&)

(b) MBEKREEEERBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B & m 8 57 14 (&)

TRBREREBL T X
MRS RBERNE
HBEHEEBEMNED:

HK$'000
FAT
As at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—NF—H—H 711
Changes due to financial instruments ER—HA—B®Rcft TAEMm
recognised as at 1 January (non credit- HENEFH(EEERE) :
impaired):
— Impairment reversed — BEERE (706)
New financial assets originated or BEEANBENTEREE
purchased 205
Exchange realignment ME H B (5)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-AF+ZA=+—H 205
Changes due to financial instruments R—A—B®RAEFBITAM
recognised as at 1 January (non-credit HENEFH(EEERE) :
impaired):
— Impairment reversed — B ERE (205)
New financial assets originated or EEAXNBENTEREE
purchased 868
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZFE-_BF+-A=+—H 333
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R e IS Rk M A (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z - - ZFTF+ _-_H=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for trade
receivables are mainly due to:

29. €T HE(&)

(b) Bris R EEERRBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B & 8 &7 & ()

FE U X 5 5K00R B 18 B
BERHN:

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hF
Increase in Decrease in

lifetime ECL lifetime ECL
not credit- not credit-
impaired impaired
ZHEHEE EXEEEEN
ECAE:I Ol SE(EEE
8) 3 A )

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH T FH&ET

Settlement in full of trade debtors & £ 1E & JfE I BR 7Kk (205) (706)
New trade receivable HEW RS I8 333 205
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B B R R W e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following tables shows the movement in
ECL that has been recognised for deposit and

29. @M ITE(&)

(b) MBEKREEEERBUR (&)

(iv) 1= & & B & m 8 57 14 (&)

TERBRIAEEREME
WRERRNAMEER

other receivables: BREE:
Lifetime
ECL (credit-
12M ECL impaired) Total
2HIEH
128 A EH FEER
FEEBEE (EEHRHE) 45t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FBT
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-—NF—H—H — — —
Changes due to financial AR=ZT—hFEF—H—
instruments recognised as B R e/ T EMH
at 1 January 2019: BHEE:
— Impairment recognised =~ — B R FE 1510 — 1510
New financial assets BEEAREENTER
originated or purchased BE — 2,094 2,094
Exchange realignment b 58 B (26) (35) (61)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—-—NFET+ZA
:+— = 1,484 2,059 3,543
Changes due to financial AR=ZT=%F
instruments recognisedas — A —HERL &
at 1 January 2020: TEMHRMWES:
— Impairment reversed — BB B E (6) — (6)
New financial assets EEAREENT
originated or purchased MEE 24 — 24
As at 31 December 2020 R=-ZE_-Z&+_A
ET=I[2 1,502 2,059 3,561
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
/\‘/T\ ZI- 7_|777% ijlz& 2% M—J (n\, = )

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z - - ZFTF+ _-_H=+—HIFFZ
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. €W T HE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BF%& R EEEZE R BUR ()

policies (Continued)

(iv) Credit risk and impairment assessment (ivi EERMRBETMEE)
(Continued)

Changes in the loss allowance for deposit and e kA HMEKE IEJEET‘E
other receivables are mainly due to: BREZHETEHRN

2020
C 7 C—J ﬂi

Increase in Increase in
12M ECL lifetime ECL
1218 B 78 HA = HI7E
FEBEREN FEEBEM
credit-

impaired

BEHERE FEERE
HKD’000 HKD’000
TERT THER

Impairment for new deposit and ik & R H A FE WK
other receivables D]

2019
—E-NF
Increase in
Increase in lifetime
12M ECL ECL
1218 A 8 HA % HA 78 Hf
FEBBEN FEBHB\EM

Credit-
impaired
mEERE EERE
HKD"000 HKD'000
FHET FHET
Further impairment made for not %t (= & F & &
credit-impaired receivables JE U 5K T8 FT 1B
#E—ZRE 1,510 —
Impairment for new deposit and ik e & H b g K
other receivables HR A — 2,094

REERERAR /202068 1/D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
R RWE(E)

4r A

INAAS

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk

The Group's policies are to regularly
monitor the current and expected liquidity
requirements, and to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and available
banking facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically,
bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks
choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates.

The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B HRERM T (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

/\‘/T\

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(v)

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

Liquidity risk (Continued)

(b)

29. €T HE(&)

M E kR EEEE R BER

(&)

(v)

RBESRER(H)

On demanded Total
less than Between undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate 1year 1tob years L amount
KR
il —FEHR -Z21F REREART REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
TET TET TER TET
At 31December 2020 R-Z-Ff&
tZA=+-H
Trade payables ERR5HE N/A
TEA 5,510 5,510
Lease liabilities HERRE 4.75 to 8.80%
4.75%8.80% 2,217 2,999 5,216
Other payables and At ERFER N/A
accruals EiER TEA 4,555 4,555
12,282 15,281
On demanded Total
less than Between  undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate Tyear  1tobyears cashflow amount
RERE REB
7 & HSIME —E0F RERELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET TAT TAR
I )
At31 December 2019 ~ R-E—HF
t=ZA=1-A
Trade payables ERZSHE N/A
TEH 5,199 - 5,199 5,199
Other payables and At ERFER N/A
accruals i EA TiEf 4,639 - 4,639 4,639
Lease liabilities HERE 4.75% 2,414 417 6,531 6,024
Bank borrowings RITfEH 46106.2%
4.6%6.2% 19,967 - 19,967 19,967
32,219 4117 36,336 35,829
e e s s o e TR RE
EMZENEBATA -

if changes in variable interest rate differ to
those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period

theBATES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. e WMITE(E)
(¢) Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMIECZAREE

instruments
Some of the Group's financial instruments are BHEREENmME A5 E
measured at fair value for financial reporting ETE&mT E?ﬁ"’&fﬁ@%% o
purposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market- REFAFEER ~&5BFA
observable data to the extent it is available. Where AESKHMSABREE -
Level 1 inputs are not available, the management BEUWEFE R ASE R
would establish the appropriate valuation techniques BRYEXNERZHERD
and inputs to the valuation model or to engage third P ASBEIEZFE=ZMNE
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. A ERETEE -
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that AEEMEMEEZAABRR
are measured at fair value on a recurring EHEEUANABTGE
basis
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured AEEBHEREERSHRS
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. BHREATFEEE - T&RIE
The following table gives information about how the HEBUNNEEZSTSMEE
fair values of these financial assets are determined AABE(LERMEANHER
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs R AR 2ER -
used).

Financial assets at FVTPL

Unlisted equity investment
Life insurance policy

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2020
?—7—7¢+ ﬂ -I- HZ’L\\ bﬁ]ﬁi&
Level 2 Level 3 Total
EZ8 E=4 @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TER

BOAEFAREN

EHEE
FLMZRARE
ShiRE

Financial assets at FVTPL

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2019

RIB-NET-A=ZT-BZRABER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
21 F_8R EF=R @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET TET FET
. _______________________ ____________________ _____________________________|
NRAABHARREN
SRMEE
ERRE - - 4,742 4,742

Life insurance policy
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
B HRERM T (E)

NF

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (Continued)

Fair value
Financial assets Fair value at hierarchy
tREE ARfE AREER
IDEVETTE 31 December
2020 2019
SHIL N
+=A +=A
=t-H =ft-A
Life insurance YT ANENCLA  Approximately  Level 3
policy, at fair GLCTRILNONLN  HK$4,742,000
value
EhixE # B E=R
(BAffE) ERSLYTEPA 4,742,000 7T
Unlisted equity Approximately - Level3
investment HK$329,000
EARPA TN #1329,0007E T — £=8/

There were no transfers between different level
of fair value hierarchy during the year ended 31

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. €T HE(&)

(c) ERMTRZQREE(F)

FEETHEEZANERRE
FHEEDQAAEGE(HE)

Valuation

technique(s) and Significant unobservable

key input(s) input(s)
AW BETELEN
BEZY BE2Y

Based on credit rating, Surrender value
ages of life insured
persons and the
discount rate (note a)

@#Fﬁi@

SRXRAEREK
%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

EREE

Market approach (i) The market price of in
the same or a similar line
of business

(i) Based on circumstances
unique, additional factors

have been considered

December 2020.

Note:

a) The surrender value of the policy is provided by the
insurance company.

b) The fair value of the unlisted equity investment was

measured by the independent valuer based on Level 3
hierarchy by using market approach.

5% () HEKBUXHEOT
&
i) ENEBREBEY  DER
BINER
BE-T-_FTF+-A=1+—H
ti& RABETAERE R
ZEAEBEE -
it o2
a RBAFAERHIREERSHE
b HEPRAREZARMEHBS

UEERERESRERERD
BELE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B B R R W e (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial instruments on recurring basis:

—FEFEL_A=F—HIFE

29. €@ T E(&)

(c) ERMTRZQAREFE(E)

E=ZRDREFENHEREROR
BEMEEAE)

Life Unlisted

insurance equity

policy at instruments
FVTPL at FVTPL Total

RARE

RARE FABREMN

FABEN FLTRAE
ERRE RE& e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ—-—NE—-—H—H 4,632 - 4,632
Fair value changes NAEAE 110 - 110

At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NE+ZA

=+—H 4,742 - 4,742
Acquisition g - 843 843
Exchange realignment b o 3% - (12) (12)
Fair value changes N B 73 (502) (429)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-FFE+_=H

=+-8

Included in profit or loss is an amount of
approximately HK$429,000 fair value losses (2019:
gains of HK$110,000) relating to the financial assets
at FVTPL held at the end of the current reporting
period.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/—J_\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

30.

& B % R R M (8)

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. MEEHELENEBEHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TRFLAEBEREETHEENE
arising from financing activities, including both cash EEH gHEERSRFRSE
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing Fo-ARMETHEEANABGEARNAE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future SEGEEHRENERSDEAME R
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated FREHREAENRENERFTE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing DEHRRBEERE
activities:
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
R IT B HEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—H—H 15,217 5,827
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEaE = (1,322)
New leases FHEE - 1,330
Interest expense F B X = 301
Exchange realignment PE o, 8 % - (112)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITER TS RIE 46,462 =
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITENX (46,646) -
At 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF+A
=t+—H 15,033 6,024
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEHEaE - (2,196)
New leases FHEE - 663
Interest expense F B X 104 261
Exchange realignment bE H 5 B
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTER
At 31 December 2020 R-ZFE-BF+=A
=+-—H

HEZERARAT /2020F 3K
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZ_-F -_FTF+_-_A=4+—HI FF

For

31.

32.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$1,115,000
and HK$1,115,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for buildings (2019: HK$1,330,000 and
HK$1,330,000).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, saved as disclosed in elsewhere of
the consolidation financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material transactions with
related parties:

Amount due from Mr. Wong: & I & % 4 FIA -
Balance as at 1 January/ R—A—B /+=A8
31 December =t+—BHz#&&%

Maximum amount FAZ &=
outstanding during the RAEEST
year

31. kREXRF

32.

Note
B it

FAN AEEREFHELRKEEER
MERAREEERTEEABIIEREA
& % 5l A1,115,0005% jT &%1,115,000
BT (ZF — L F :1,330,000% T &
1,330,000 7T ) °

BBt SR 5

(a)

Note:

1. The Group made advance payments to Mr. Wong during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, which were
all repaid by Mr. Wong before 31 December 2020 and
31 December 2019, respectively. The aforesaid advance
payments to Mr. Wong were unsecured, interest free and
repaid by Mr. Wong in a period ranging from one to three
months.

(b) Key management compensation

Details of the compensation of key management
personnel of the Group, who are the executive
directors, are disclosed in Note 12 to the financial
statements.
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(b)

REA BREFVYHBERREM
BBy P i BR E S 0 AN 5 [ B B
AT ANATERRS

2020 2019
—2-2F —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET

35,109

AEEBREZE :2:2%&:%—%
F+-_A=+—BLEFERFLEEDY
%ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁ%@ﬁa PRIR=ZF=F
F+-_A=t+t—BE=ZZE—NAF+=A
=+ AHEAETHEE - LA
HEAEFEHNBAMGRAEBER 28
ERNTF—ZE=EAHBMAB=LEE

& .
FTEEEASHMH
AEBGRIUTESTNEEE

A BB R AR RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z - - ZFTF+ _-_H=+—HIFFZ

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. XAREEMNBARIFE
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RBEEHRRARNEEZELBERSS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set R B AR FEBEHIWMT:
out below:
Place of Issued share
incorporation Principal activities capital/
and type of  and place of registered Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name legal entity  operation capital held by the Company held by the Company
AL/
i) BEARE/
iR fEnk  IEER ERRE HAAARE R RRELH HANAREZRERLH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B% A& B% i

Strat Tech Holdings BV Investment holding

Limited
StratTech Holdings  2BR4EE ALK %7 =
Limited

Shen You (China) ~ Hong Kong ~ Investment holding ~ HK$10,000,000
Limited

BE(PE)ERAR ER RERR 10,000,000 7

Tseyu International ~ HongKong ~ Trading of sewing ~ HK$60,000,000 100%
Trading Company threads and
Limited broad categories

of garment

a0cessories
EHARZS Bk ROBAXERE 60000000%7 100%
BRAR HHEERER
Newchamp Industries Hong Kong  Trading of sewing ~ HK$30,000,000 100%
Limited threads
HRERZRRAT ER #0545 30,000,000 7 100%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AT RERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. AARFEMBATIFEE
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

RBEEMRARAEELREERE
MM EABFBEHINOT : (8)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set
out below: (Continued)

Place of Issued share
incorporation Principal activities capital/
and type of  and place of registered Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name legal entity  operation capital held by the Company held by the Company
ey
iR BRfRE/
1 fensk  EXE ERA HARARE R RRELH HAAAREZRERLH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B% B B% B

Cheerful Keen Limited BV Investment holding USS1
EERERAT  HERRES RERR %7 100%
Clolab International ~ Hong Kong ~ Fashion design and HK$10,000 100%
Limited trading of garment
aceessories
REABEERAD & BRRTRBEEN 1000087 100%
g%
Thril Rank Company BV Investment holding US$100 -
Limited
Thiil Renk Company  RBEXEE REER 100%7T -
Limited
Guangzhou Xinhua ~ PRC Manufacture and ~ HK$84,250,000 100%
thread Company trading of sewing
Limited (B 37285 threads and
$ERAAN broad categories
of garment
a0cessories
EMHESZ i RORNEERE 6425000087 100%

RRAA

GHLIERHS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e RRME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z - - ZFTF+ _-_H=+—HIFFZ

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. AARFEMBATIFEE
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by RBEHRAREELBERS
the Company at the end of the reporting period are set WHEARFBEHINAOT : (&)
out below: (Continued)

Place of Issued share
incorporation Principal activities capital/
and type of  and place of registered Proportion of ownership interest Proportion of voting power
Name legal entity  operation capital held by the Company held by the Company
ey
iR BRfRE/
2R fensk  EXE ERRA HARARE R ERELH HALAAREZRERLH
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
B% B B% B

RERELE(LE) PRC Investment holding ~ HK$10,000,000 100%
ERAF* ['Shen
You Chenxin') *
RERELE(LE) 98 RERR 10,000,000 7% 100%
ERAT
RS PRC Trading of sewing~ RMBA00,000 100%
BRAH threads and
broad categories
of garment
accessories
B e BOSALERS ARH500000T 100%
ERAT HHEERES
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities HEFEK BMENB AR ZEITEM
at the end of the year. BIEES o
* Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law. * BiEREERIMAITGBEBED % -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

& B %5 R MY A ()

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The event after the reporting period is as follow:

a)

Since the outbreak of the new coronavirus
pneumonia epidemic (the “Epidemic”) in the
PRC, a number of provinces and cities in the PRC
have taken emergency public health measures
and various regulations and requirements for
epidemic prevention and controls were issued by
national governments at all levels (the “Prevention
Regulations”). The Group has actively responded
to the Prevention Regulations and resumed the
production since February 2020. Given the dynamic
nature of the circumstances, the uncertainty about
the duration of the Epidemic and the situation of
epidemic preventive measures, up to the date of
the report, the assessment of the related impact on
the Group is still in progress.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\\/T\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & £ —

& B %5 R M A ()

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

b)

On 18 August 2020, the Group entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with independent
vendors, pursuant to which the Group acquires
100% equity interest in Diamond Motto Limited
(“DML"), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands with limited liability, at a consideration
of HK$14,500,000. The acquisition would be
completed by the allotment and issuance of an
aggregate of 67,441,860 consideration shares at
the issue price of HK$0.215 as the consideration
of the acquisition. LMP International Limited
(“LMP"), a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability, is a directly wholly owned
subsidiary of DML. It is principally engaged in the
trading of furnishing and the provision of interior
design, fitting out and decoration services. Upon
the acquisition, DML and LMP (the “Target
Group”) will become subsidiaries of the Group
and the financial information of the Target Group
will be consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The acquisition was
completed on 9 February 2021 and the closing price
of the Company’s share on the acquisition date was
HK$0.38.

Up to date of the approval for issuance of these
consolidated financial statements, the Directors
are still assessing the fair values of Target Group's
assets and liabilities to be recognised at the date of
acquisition.

As at the date of the approval for issuance of these
consolidated financial statement, the fair value
assessments of goodwill and intangible assets,
if any, of Target Group had not been finalised
and thus, the initial accounting for the aforesaid
acquisition of equity interest in Target Group has
been determined provisionally. Upon finalisation
of the valuation, goodwill arising on acquisition
may charge accordingly. The Directors expect the
valuation will be finalised in year 2021.

—FEEFEL_A=F—HIFE

b)

RZE_FEFNAFTNBE KE
BHRBYEFILEE HE
Bt - ANEE PR E14,500,000
% Jt W BB Diamond Motto
Limited ([DMLJ)100% # # °
WHEEERIEETESKRRE
B 12 0.215%8 7o Bid 3 R #1745 &
67,441,8600% X & A% 9 58 Ak °
DMLA —HMREBE XS
A S 2B RA R o 88 B ER
BRAB((HE]) AR E ST
ik sz2BR A - JIDML 2
EEZEKBAR - EIE%
EREEZIAREHREAR
HIEREMRBE XK - Hﬁzﬁ%%
18 52 Ak % - DML &3 % ([ B 42
E@EDEXAELEEN B AR
BEREEZHBERBRA
Elzi? FBHRRANLEE
W BEEN T - —F =
Hhamﬁ =N S
Wi H A B8 B0.38B T °

BEZSHRAMBEBRREME
T#EzH EFNEFGEER
SEEERARERNKERDRE

RE R °

i
%
BE
% 1

LR A B R R E i E T
H BEESERERENR
HAAREFG@E)EKR
THARER LB EREE
IERERBEEE T S5
B REEEEER WEBE
ERNEEREENR - EFE
HEEHEEN T - —FEF -

/ﬂﬂfb} W NS iﬂi
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

/\‘/—J_\

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # £ —

& B %5 R MY A ()

34. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

c)

On 19 January 2021, the Company entered into
the subscription agreement with the subscriber,
pursuant to which the subscriber has conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to allot and issue 24,000,000
new Shares at the subscription Price of HK$0.30
per subscription share. Also, the placing agent and
the Company entered into the placing agreement,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to place through the placing agent, on a
best effort basis, up to 24,000,000 placing shares
at the placing price of HK$0.30 per placing share to
not less than six placees who and whose beneficial
owners shall be Independent Third Parties. The
subscription and placing of the new shares has
been completed on 11 February 2021. Details of the
subscription and placing of the new shares are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated
19 January 2021, 2 February 2021 and 11 February
2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
AR E(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z - - ZFTF+ _-_H=+—HIFFZ

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35. AQRIBI B MRRAE#ER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
—E-EfF —ET-NF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
K iz FE& T F&E T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL LWARBEFABEZNS
B & B -
Investments in subsidiaries REBARNKE 10,000
10,000
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Ji& U Mﬂf UNEIE L] (a) 28,360 31,501
Prepayments, deposit and other T8 1% 3K % T;z% K E A
receivables JE IR 5k IE 272 36
Cash and cash equivalents RekREZEY 10,556 5
39,188 31,542
CURRENT LIABILITY REBEE
Other payables and accruals H A RIE K&
FE 5t & A 1,512 1,517
1,512 1,517
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEEE 37,676 30,025
NET ASSETS EEFE 41,651 40,025
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B E
Share capital i 2 12,000 8,000
Reserves 7 29,651 32,025
TOTAL EQUITY S 41,651 40,025
The Company's statement of financial position was EEEgR T —F=A =+ ~Hit
approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 26 R T RN R B AR R R
March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: WAHUNTEERREE:
Wong Kwok Wai, Albert Leung King Yue, Alex
EE# R
Director Director
BEF EE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
A BEHRERMEGE)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T -—ZFTF+ _-H=+—HIFFZ

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  35. AAQR BB MR K &R (&)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserves KATIEEEE

Accumulated

Capital capital ~ Share premium losses Total
BOER B E ZitE B @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THEL FAL THR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-A—H 8,000 57751 (10,892) 54,859
Loss for the year ERER = - (14,834) (14,834)
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NETZA
1 January 2020 Z* AR
“2-TF-f-H 8,000 57751 (25,726) 40,025
Issues of shares under rights REHRETRS
issues 4,000 10,641 - 14,641
Loss for the year ERER = - (13,015) (13,015)
At 31 December 2020 R=B=-2F+=f
=+-§ : : (38,741)
Note o
a) The amount due from subsidiaries represents fund transfer for the a) ERMBRRAREEEEEAEEAR
Group’s daily operation. The amount is interest-free, unsecured BEZES  ZREFBAATIHE  EBE
and repayable on demand. HRBRERER -
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Five Year Financial Summary

T B 5 2

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z — T - ZFTF+ _-HA=+—HIFFZ

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the published audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below:

2020
=Yg 3.3
HK$'000
THRT

TXEINAEERNBELABAYRFEZ
XEUREERBEMZ  DREEBCA
MOEERTBRER TEEEEY &

oM

Year ended 31 December

BET-RA=t-BHLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016
“F-NF ZE-N\Ff ZF-tF CZEF-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

RESULTS ES

REVENUE iy 3

Cost of sales HER K

Gross profit £

Other (losses) gains, net ~ Hb (B8 EH FHE

Selling and distribution HERDHHAX
expenses

Administrative expenses  {THBIX

Impairment losses on SREEHNEEFR
financial assets

Other expenses Hirpix

Finance costs MEHA

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE %t A (&518) /%Al
TAX

Income tax (expense)/ FEREX) /B4
credit

LOSS FOR THE YEAR 2EFR

44,984

(34,537)

10,447

(1,077)

(5,745)
(15,407)

(146)
(3,302)
(365)

(15,595)

(15,595)

58,746 64,510 74,371 72,624
(47416) (61,232) (48,853) (45,617)
11,330 13,278 25,618 27,007
2,039 2,037 642 1,515
(7393) (7579) (6,408) (6,952)
(13,508) (16,456) (9,831) (7752)
(3,103) (499) - _
(4,709) (2,301) (20,108) (10,303)
(1,313) (886) (2,291) (2,892)
(16,657) (12,406) (12,478 623
(2,562) 1,551 (712) (1,100)
(19,219) (10,855) (13,190) (477)
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Five Year Financial Summary (Continued)
hFHHHE(E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z —FT - ZFTF+ _H=+—HIFFZ

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HL%EE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Sk 3 T F T\ C—T—tF C—T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THRT TiET FTiET FTET FTET
TOTAL ASSETS EEHE 61,140 79,493 92,631 129,359 118,334
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEAH (15,532) (37,021) (29,525) (51,275) (56,949)
45,608 42,472 63,106 78,084 61,385

Note: Bt -

The financial information for the years ended 31 December 2016 was extracted #HE-ZT—XNF+-_A=+—"BILEFENFEE
from the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2017. The summary 3B ARTR AP A T —+tF+ A=+ HNHR
above does not form part of the audited financial statements for the year ended MK ER - i EXABREBEE T _TFE+ - A
31 December 2020. S+—BLEFENKEZHBREN—HD -
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